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Technologies, ]Inc

Letter to Shareholders

Dear Fellow Shareholders:

2002 was a year of significant achievements for Rudolph Technologies. Our financial
performance was solid—particularly given the continued softness in the semiconductor
industry. We are especially proud of achieving a sequential increase in revenue and
maintaining profitability each quarter throughout 2002, excluding acqguisition related charges,
despite declining semiconductor equipment markets.

We are also pleased to report that over the past year our development programs
accelerated resulting in new product offerings expanding our opportunities for new business.
With the insight to continue investing in its future and the resources to follow through with
such endeavors, Rudolph continues to position itself for the market demands of tomorrow. We
anticipate that we will aff look back and recall that this has been one of the most difficult, yet
most significant, pericds in Rudolph’s long history.

We successfully penetrated the market further in 2002. Rudolph ended the year with a
total of 35 customers purchasing its MetaPULSE® tools in order to meet aluminum and
copper metrology needs for leading-edge devices. in addition, 44 customers to date have
purchased our S-Series metrology tools for leading-edge transparent film applications.
Moreover, we continued to work in close collaboration with cur customers, specifically those
with the resources and the commitment to invest in new technology. Such customers include
all of the top ten and 14 of the top 16 largest device manufacturers in the world.

We look to Rudolph’s next growth phase with great enthusiasm and confidence based
on the solid foundation that we continued to build in 2002. Specifically, in an all cash
transaction we acquired the Yield Metrology Group {(formerly ISOA) in Richardson, Texas. We
also created a new business unit dedicated solely to integrated Metrology. We now have a
balanced portfolio of 4 lines of business—all address our customer’s metrology requirements
including:

(1) opaque tools through cur MetaPULSE product line;

(2) transparent tools through cur S-ulftra™ product line;

(3) after develop inspection toois though our WaferView® product line;
and

(4) integrated metrology modules through our AMOD™ product line.

Our unparalleled porifolio of metrology products leads chip manufacturers to continue to look
to Rudolph for meeting their process control needs.
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When industry recovery arrives, we believe equipment spending for capacity
expansion will be at the .13 and .09 micron technology nodes. Our deveiopment efforts have
resulied in new products in ali 4 of our lines of business that address metrology needs at
these technology nodes and beyond. In fact, we believe our MetaPULSE technology is the
industry standard for metal film metrology, particularly for copper interconnect measurement
at the upcoming .13 and .08 micron technology nodes.

We are confident that we have the right building blocks in place for our business tc
surpass our record results achieved during the industry’s peak in 2000—when we had sales
of $88 miilion while the total available market was approximately $860 million and we
achieved $1.49 earnings per diluted share. Based on the opporiunities afforded by our
expanded portfolic of products, we estimate that the total available market for Rudolph at the
next industry peak will be at least 2 times larger than that available to us at the 2000 peak.
We are committed to maximizing this increased market opportunity to the benefit of our
shareholders.

As recent trends show, our industry’s dynamics continue to shift at a rapid pace. Once
again, the team at Rudolph has proven itself adept at anticipating such change ahead of the
curve, thereby positioning the Company to capitalize on the opporiunities atforded by new
industry developments. For exampie, we were quick {0 recognize the immense promise of
foundries as their business model matured and they evolved from trailing-edge technology to
ieading-edge {echnology in less than a decade. The result of this foresight is that the three
largest foundries in the world are now important Rudolph customers. Having had success with
this strategy, particularly in Taiwan in the 90’s, we are looking to replicate that success in
China. In 2002, we opened our first office in China—the world’s fastest growing
semiconductor equipment market. We will continue to successfully anticipate and adapt to
industry changes in order to shape Rudolph’s future and to promote cur long-term success.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wouid like to extend sincere appreciation tc our
dedicated employees worldwide. Your extraorcinary commitment and knowledge provide the
competitive edge that is the foundation of Rudolph’s future success. | also want to thank our
customers, shareholders, and suppliers for your suppert during 2002 and your continued
belief in Rudolph in 2003.

Sincerely yours,

g FEL

Paul F. McLaughiin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

March 24, 2003
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking statements, including those
concerning our expectations of future sales, gross profits, research, development and engineering expenses,
selling, general and administrative expenses, product introductions and cash requirements. The statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. In addition, we
may, from time to time make oral forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include but are
not limited to those identified in this report with an asterisk (*) symbol. Additional forward looking statements
may be identified by the words “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “intend”, “will” and similar expressions, as
they relate to us or our management.

The forward-looking statements contained herein reflect our current views with respect to future events and
are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Actual results may differ materially from those
projected in such forward looking statements for a number of reasons including the following: variations in the
level of orders which can be affected by general economic conditions and growth rates in the semiconductor
manufacturing industry and in the markets served by our customers, the international economic and political
climates, difficulties or delays in product functionality or performance, the delivery performance of sole source
vendors, the timing of future product releases, failure to respond adequately to either changes in technology or
customer preferences, changes in pricing by us or our competitors, ability to manage growth, risk of nonpayment
of accounts receivable or changes in budgeted costs. Our stockholders should carefully review the cautionary
statements contained in this Form 10K, including “Risk Factors” set forth in Item 1 below.




PARTI

Item 1. Business
General

Rudolph is a worldwide leader in the design, development and manufacture of high-performance process
control metrology systems used by semiconductor device manufacturers. We provide full-fab solutions through a
family of proprietary systems for both transparent and opaque thin film measurements, and macro-defect
detection. These systems, which have production-worthy automation, are designed specifically for semiconductor
manufacturing applications and are backed by worldwide customer support.

We introduced the industry’s first production-oriented microprocessor-controlled ellipsometer for thin
transparent film measurements in 1977. Since that time, we have consistently provided innovative product
developments designed to meet manufacturers’ most advanced measurement requirements. Our patented
technology uses up to four lasers operating simultaneously at multiple angles and muitiple wavelengths,
providing powerful analysis and measurement capabilities to handle the most challenging requirements of
today’s advanced processes and tomorrow’s new materials. Unlike spectroscopic ellipsometers, lasers make our
metrology tools inherently stable, increase measurement speed and accuracy, and reduce maintenance costs by
minimizing the time required to requalify a light source when it is replaced. Our systems also employ a
proprietary reflectometer technology that allows the characterization of films and film stacks that cannot be
performed using conventional reflectometry or ellipsometry alone. Qur latest offering, the S-ulrra™ delivers the
highest accuracy when optimizing critical film deposition processes and superior repeatability when monitoring
production of current and future generations of advanced materials including nitrided and high-x gate materials,
low-x dielectrics, 193 nm ARCs, and SiGe.

For opaque film characterization, we brought patented optical acoustic metal film metrology technology to
the semiconductor manufacturing floor with MetaPULSE®. MetaPULSE allows customers to simultaneously
measure the thickness and other proprieties of up to six metal or other opaque film layers in a non-contact
manner on product wafers. PULSE Technology™ uses ultra-fast lasers to generate sound waves that pass down
through a stack of metal or opaque films such as copper or aluminum, sending back to the surface an echo that
indicates film thickness, density, and other process critical parameters. We believe that we currently offer the
only systems that can non-destructively measure opaque thin-film stacks with the speed and accuracy
semiconductor device manufacturers demand in order to achieve high yields with the latest fabrication processes.
The technology is ideal for characterizing copper interconnect structures and over sixty percent of all systems
sold have been for copper applications. The MefaPULSE-II is our second generation metal metrology system
which provides superior performance on today’s ultra-thin barriers, narrow lines, and more complex structures,
while providing higher throughput, a smaller measurement spot, and better repeatability.

On September 25, 2002, we acquired ISOA, Inc., which we renamed the Yield Metrology Group (YMG).
YMG had licensed its technology for use in the semiconductor industry and recently began transitioning to a
semiconductor capital equipment supplier. YMG’s core technologies are knowledge-based algorithms used in
wafer macro-defect detection and classification. The purchase consideration for YMG, including direct
acquisition costs, was $25.2 million in cash. The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations.

Our acquisition of YMG marked the introduction of the WaferView® family of metrology systems for
macro-defect lithography inspection. These fully automated systems detect and classify lithography defects at
production throughputs. The advanced color vision system uses proprietary and patented knowledge-based
algorithmus to provide higher defect detection rates than can be achieved on gray-scale systems and to accurately
classify lithography defects which vary widely in color, shape, and appearance. Results from WaferView’s expert
system software can be integrated directly into the manufacturer’s process control system to provide rapid
notification of process problems and to improve root cause analysis of defect sources.
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In 2002 we also introduced the first of a series of metrology products specifically designed for integration
into process equipment. The i-MOD systems will leverage our years of metrology experience by incorporating
advanced metrology technologies into small footprint modules that will provide real-time process control
information from inside the process equipment.* Integrated systems virtually eliminate the delay between
processing and measurement, so feedback and feedforward information is immediately available to control
process drift and maintain optimal processing parameters. The i-MOD AF uses our ellipsometry technology and
has been selected by a major process equipment supplier for integration on advanced thermal processing
equipment that, among other things, produces transistor gate-dielectric films.

We were incorporated in New Jersey in 1958 and reincorporated into Delaware in 1999. The Internet
website address of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. is http://www.rudolphtech.com. The Company’s annual reports
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Forms 10-Q and current reports on Forms 8-X (and any amendments to those
reports) are made available free of charge on or through its Internet website as soon as reasonably practicable
after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Technology

We believe that our expertise in engineering, research, and development enables us to rapidly develop new
technologies and products in response to emerging industry trends.* The breadth of our technology enables us to
offer our customers a diverse combination of measurement technologies that provide process control for the
majority of thin films used in semiconductor manufacturing. Additionally, our new defect detection and
classification technology will allow us to provide yield enhancement metrology for critical photolithography
processes.*

Optical Acoustics.  Optical acoustic metrology involves the use of ultra-fast laser induced sonar for metal
and opaque thin film measurement. This technology sends ultrasonic waves into multi-layer opaque films and
then analyzes the resulting echoes to simultaneously determine the thickness of each individual layer in complex
multi-layer metal film stacks. The echo’s amplitude and phase can be used to detect film properties, missing
layers and interlayer problems. Since different phenomena affect amplitude and phase uniquely, a variety of
process critical interlayer problems can be detected in a single measurement.

The use of optical acoustics to measure multi-layer metal and opaque films was pioneered by scientists at
Brown University in collaboration with engineers at Rudolph. The proprietary optical acoustic technology in our
MetaPULSE systems measures the thickness of single or multi-layer opaque films ranging from less than 40
Angstroms to greater than five microns. It provides these measurements at a rate of 70 wafers per hour with one
to two percent accuracy and 0.5% repeatability. This range of thicknesses covers the majority of thick and thin
metal films projected by the International Roadmap for Semiconductors to be used in semiconductor
manufacturing for the next three processing nodes and through the end of this decade. Our optical acoustic
technology also enables our MetaPULSE systems to measure film properties in existing product-wafer test sites
by using a small measurement spot, only ten microns in diameter, which, in combination with pattern recognition
software algorithms allows on-product measurements. '

Ellipsometry. Ellipsometry is a non-contact, non-destructive optical technique for transparent thin film
measurement. When a surface or interface is struck by polarized light, ellipsometers measure the change in the
reflected light’s polarization. By measuring at multiple wavelengths, an ellipsometer can determine process
significant properties of transparent films. The combination of multiple angles of incidence and multiple
wavelength ellipsometry also allows more accurate and reliable measurement across a wider range of thicknesses
and a wider variety of films and film stacks than single angle systems.

We have been an industry leader in ellipsometry technology for the last three decades. We hold patents on
several ellipsometry technologies developed by our engineers, including our proprietary technique that uses four
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lasers for multiple-angle of incidence, multiple wavelength ellipsometry. Laser ellipsometry technology enables
our transparent film systems to continue to provide the increasingly higher level of accuracy needed as thinner
films and newer materials are introduced for future generations of IC devices.

Reflectometry. For applications requiring broader spectral coverage, some of our ellipsometry tools are
also equipped with a reflectometer. Reflectometry uses a white or ultraviolet light source to determine the
properties of transparent thin films by analyzing the wavelength and intensity of light reflected from the surface
of a wafer. This optical information is processed with software algorithms to determine film thickness and other
material properties. By combining data from both the laser ellipsometer and broad spectrum reflectometer it is
possible to characterize films and film stacks that cannot be adequately analyzed by either method individually.

Automated Defect Detection and Classification. Automating the defect detection and classification process
is best done by 2 system that can mimic, or even extend, the response of the human eye, but at a much higher
speed and more consistently. To do this, our WaferView system captures full-color whole wafer images using
simultaneous dark and bright field illumination. The resulting bright and dark field images are compared to those
from an “ideal” wafer having no defects. When a difference is detected, its image is broken down into complex
vectors that allow rapid and accurate comparison with a library of known classified defects stored in the tool’s
database. Patented and proprietary enhancements of this approach enable very fast and highly repeatable image
classification. The system is pre-programmed with an extensive library of default local, global, and color defects
and can also “learn” a virtually unlimited amount of new defect classes. This allows customers to define defects
based on their existing defect classification system, provides more reliable automated rework decisions, and more
accurate statistical process control data.

Products

We market and sell products to all major logic, memory, and ASIC device manufacturers. We provide our
customers with versatile full-fab metrology solutions by offering families of systems that meet their metrology
needs. Our systems are designed for high-volume semiconductor manufacturing facilities and offer automated
wafer handling and 200 and 300 mm configurations to satisfy our customers’ manufacturing needs. Qur systems
operate at high throughput with ultra-clean operation and high reliability. Our MetaPULSE, S-ultra, and S
products are all built on the production-worthy Y ANGUARD™ automation platform that provides a common
software system, user interface, and hardware base. Our products can be broken down into three main categories:
Transparent Thin Films, Opaque Thin Films, and Macro-Defect Inspection.

Transparent Thin Films

S-ultra and S-Series

This S-ultra and S-Series families of products incorporate up to four lasers, providing ellipsometry at
wavelengths across the spectrum from deep blue to near infrared. Visible and ultraviolet reflectometers are also
available. These systems can be user configured by selecting the required lasers and reflectometers for various
specific applications including CMP, CVD, diffusion, lithography, and etch. They are available in both 200 and
300 mm configurations and are designed for production applications with high reliability and high throughput,
ranging from 80 to 120 wafers per hour. The average selling price ranges from $350,000 to $1 million.

i-MOD AF

The i-MOD AF incorporates our ellipsometry technology into a small footprint module designed for
integration into process equipment. The average selling price ranges from $150,000 to $300,000.

Focus

The highly successful Focus series was introduced in 1991. Our most current model, the FE VII, provides
accurate and repeatable measurements of production wafers with its dual-laser multiple angle ellipsometry for
200 mm or smaller wafers. The average selling price ranges from $300,000 to $600,000.
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AutoEL

The AutoEL series was the first microprocessor-based automated ellipsometer and was introduced in 1977,
It continues to be sold today and provides a fully automated desktop solution for measuring film thickness and
optical constants. It is available in different wavelength configurations and has an average selling price of
$30,000 to $100,000. ‘

Opagque Thin Films
MetaPULSE and MetaPULSE-1I

Introduced in 1997, the MetaPULSE was the first, and we believe remains the market dominant non-contact
production metrology system for thin opaque films. The MetaPULSE-II is a second generation PULSE system
providing a smaller measurement spot size, better repeatability on advanced materials, and higher throughput.
Over 140 PULSE systems have been sold to fabs around the world and over half have been deployed in copper
interconnect production applications. The systems are available in 200 and 300 mm configurations and are
designed for production applications with high reliability and throughput ranging from 60 to 75 wafers per hour.
The average selling price ranges from $90C,000 to $1.8 million.

Macro-Defect Inspection
WaferView

WaferView systems provide automated macro-defect lithography inspection for 200 and 300 mm wafers.
They have been deployed in production fabs in the US, Europe, and Asia. WaferView is available in 200 and 300
min configurations and is designed for production applications with high-reliability and throughputs ranging
from 110 to 120 wafers per hour. The average selling price ranges from $650,000 to $1.4 million.

YieldView

YieldView® is an advanced yield management and process control system. It collects, stores, and analyzes
data from multiple WaferView or other lithography inspection systems. In addition, it manages information
transfers between the WaferViews and communications with the manufacturing facilities’ statistical process
control system. This software package enables defect inspection from remote locations, defect indexing and
archiving of data obtained from multiple WaferViews, and process control information and alarms to be passed
to the facility host. The average selling price ranges from $250,000 to $450,000.

Customers

We sell our products worldwide to over 100 semiconductor device manufacturers, including both
independent semiconductor device manufacturers and foundries throughout the world. In addition, we have a
diverse customer base in terms of both geographic location and type of semiconductor device manufactured. Our
customers are located in 24 different countries.

We depend on a relatively small number of customers and end users for a large percentage of our revenues.
In the years 2000, 2001 and 2002 sales to end user customers that individually represented at least five percent of
our revenues accounted for 27.8%, 42.5% and 46.8% of our revenues. In 2002, sales to Intel accounted for 46.8%
of our revenues and no other individual end user customer accounted for more than 10% of our revenues. We do
not have purchase contracts with any of our customers that obligate them to continue to purchase our products.

Research and Development

The thin film transparent, opaque process control and macro-defect inspection metrology market is
characterized by continuous technological development and product innovations. We believe that the rapid and
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ongoing development of new products and enhancements to existing products is critical to our success.
Accordingly, we devote a significant portion of our technical, management and financial resources to research
and development programs.

The core competencies of our research and development team include metrology systems for high volume
manufacturing, ellipsometry, ultra-fast optics, picosecond acoustic and optical design, advanced metrology
application development and algorithm development. We have been granted or hold exclusive licenses to 50 U.S.
and foreign patents covering technology in the transparent thin film measurement, altered material
characterization, picosecond ultrasonic areas and knowledge-based algorithms used in macro-defect detection
and classification. We also have 29 pending regular and provisional applications in the U.S. and in other
countries.

To leverage our internal research and development capabilities, we maintain close relationships with leading
research institutions in the metrology field including Brown University. Our relationship with Brown University
has resulted in the development of the optical acoustic technology underlying our MetaPULSE product line. We
have been granted exclusive licenses from Brown University Research Foundation, subject to rights returned by
Brown and the United States government for their own non-comimercial uses for several patents relating to this
technology.

Our research and development expenditures in 2000, 2001 and 2002 were $9.0 million, $11.6 million and
$11.8 million, respectively. We plan to continue our strong commitment to new product development in the
future, and we expect that our level of research and development expenses will increase in absolute dollar terms
in future periods.* In addition, the acquisition of YMG resulted in our recording of a one-time expense of $3.5
million in 2002 for the write-off of in-process research and development. This expense related to automated
defect inspection technology to be used in stand-alone and integrated metrology equipment.

Sales, Customer Service and Application Support

We maintain an extensive network of direct sales, customer service and application support offices in
several locations throughout the world. We maintain sales, service or applications offices in New Jersey, Texas,
Germany, Holland, Ireland, Israel, Korea, Singapore, Taiwan and China. In addition, we make use of a leading
independent sales organization in Japan. We believe that this organization significantly enhances our sales
capabilities in Japan without requiring a significant capital outlay from us.

We provide our customers with comprehensive support before, during and after the delivery of our products.
For example, in order to facilitate the smooth integration of our tools into our customers’ operations, we often
assign dedicated, site-specific field service and applications engineers to provide long-term support at selected
customer sites. We also provide comprehensive service and applications training for customers at our training
facility in Mt. Arlington, New Jersey and at customer locations. In addition, we maintain a group of highly
skilled applications scientists at strategically located facilities throughout the world and at selected customer
locations.

Manufacturing

Qur principal manufacturing activities include assembly, final test and calibration. These activities are
conducted in our manufacturing facility in Ledgewood, New Jersey. Our core manufacturing competencies
include electrical, optical and mechanical assembly and testing as well as the management of new product
transitions. While we use standard components and subassemblies wherever possible, most mechanical parts,
metal fabrications and critical components used in our products are engineered and manufactured to our
specifications. We expect to rely increasingly on subcontractors and turnkey suppliers to fabricate components,
build assemblies and perform other non-core activities in a cost-effective manner.*
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We rely on limited source suppliers for certain parts and subassemblies. This reliance creates a potential
inability to obtain an adequate supply of required components, and reduced control over pricing and time of
delivery of components. An inability to obtain adequate supplies would require us to seek alternative sources of
supply or might require us to redesign our systems to accommodate different components or subassemblies.
However, if we were forced to seek alternative sources of supply, manufacture such components or
subassemblies internally, or redesign our products, this could prevent us from shipping our products to our
customers on a timely basis, which could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

Intellectual Property

We have a policy of seeking patents on inventions governing new products or technologies as part of our
ongoing research, development, and manufacturing activities. We have been granted or hold exclusive licenses to
50 U.S. and foreign patents. The patents we own or exclusively license have expiration dates ranging from 2005
to 2023. We also have 29 pending regular and provisional applications in the U.S. and other countries. Our
patents and applications principally cover various aspects of the transparent thin film measurement, altered
material characterization and macro-defect detection and classification.

We have been granted exclusive licenses from Brown University Research Foundation, subject to rights
retained by Brown and the United States government for their own non-commercial uses, for several patents
relating to the optical acoustic technology underlying our MetaPULSE product family. The terms of these
exclusive licenses are equal to the lives of the patents. We pay royalties to Brown based upon a percentage of our
revenues from the sale of systems that incorporate technology covered by the Brown patents. We also have the
right to support patent activity with respect to new ultra-fast acoustic technology developed by Brown scientists,
and to acquire exclusive licenses to this technology. Brown may terminate the licenses if we fail to pay royalties
to Brown or if we materially breach our license agreement with Brown.

Our pending patents may never be issued, and even if they are, these patents, our existing patents and the
patents we license may not provide sufficiently broad protection to protect our proprietary rights, or they may
prove to be unenforceable. To protect our proprietary rights, we also rely on a combination of copyrights,
trademarks, trade secret laws, contractual provisions and licenses. There can be no assurance that any patents
issued or licensed by us will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented or that the rights granted thereunder
will provide us with a competitive advantage.

The laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to as great an extent as do the laws
of the United States, and many U.S. companies have encountered substantial infringement problems in protecting
their proprietary rights against infringement in such countries, some of which are countries in which we have
sold and continue to sell products. There is a risk that our means of protecting our proprietary rights may not be
adequate. For example, our competitors may independently develop similar technology or duplicate our products.
If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property, it would be easier for our competitors to sell competing
products.

Competition

The market for semiconductor capital equipment is highly competitive. We face substantial competition
from established companies in each of the markets that we serve. We principally compete with KLA-Tencor and
Therma-Wave. We compete to a lesser extent with companies such as Dai Nippon Screen, Nanometrics and
Sopra. Each of our product lines also competes with products that use different metrology techniques. Some of
our competitors have greater financial, engineering, manufacturing and marketing resources, broader product
offerings and service capabilities and larger installed customer bases than we do.

Significant competitive factors in the market for metrology systems include system performance, ease of
use, reliability, cost of ownership, technical support and customer relationships. We believe that, while price and
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delivery are important competitive factors, the customers overriding requirement is for a product that meets their
technical capabilities. To remain competitive, we believe we will need to maintain a high level of investment in
research and development and sales and marketing. No assurances can be given that we will continue to be
competitive in the future.

Backlog

We schedule production of our systems based upon order backlog and informal customer forecasts. We
include in backlog only those orders to which a purchase order number has been assigned by the customer and
for which delivery has been specified within 12 months. Because shipment dates may be changed and customers
may cancel or delay orders with little or no penalty, our backlog as of any particular date may not be a reliable
indicator of actual sales for any succeeding period. At December 31, 2002, we had a backlog of approximately
$19.8 million compared with a backlog of approximately $11.2 million at December 31, 2001.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, we had 333 employees. Our employees are not represented by any collective
bargaining agreements, and we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe our employee relations are
good.

Risk Facters

Cyclicality in the semiconductor device industry has led to substantial decreases in demand for our
systems and may from time to time continue to do so

Qur operating results are subject to significant variation due to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor
device industry, which is currently experiencing a downturn. While we are not able to predict the duration or
severity of this downturn or the effect it may have on our operating results, past downturns have often resulted in
substantial decreases in the semiconductor device industry’s demand for capital equipment, including its thin
film metrology equipment, and have seriously harmed our operating results. Our business depends upon the
capital expenditures of semiconductor device manufacturers, which, in turn, depend upon the current and
anticipated market demand for semiconductors and products using semiconductors. There is typically a nine to
twelve month lag between a change in the economic condition of the semiconductor device industry and the
resulting change in the level of capital expenditures by semiconductor device manufacturers. In most cases, the
resulting decrease in capital expenditures has been more pronounced than the precipitating downturn in
semiconductor device industry revenues. The current semiconductor device industry downturn may continue for
the next several quarters. The current downturn and any future downturn in the semiconductor device industry, or
any reduction by that industry in capital expenditures, may seriously harm our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We obtain some of ¢the components and subassemblies included in our systems from a limited group of
suppliers, and the partial or complete loss of one of these suppliers could cause production defays and 2
substantial loss of revemntes

We obtain some of the components and subassemblies included in our systems from a limited group of
suppliers and do not have long-term contracts with many of our suppliers. Our dependence on limited source
suppliers of components and our lack of long-term contracts with many of our suppliers exposes us to several
risks, including a potential inability to obtain an adequate supply of components, price increases, late deliveries
and poor component quality. Disruption or termination of the supply of these components could delay shipments
of our systems, damage our customer relationships and reduce our sales. From time to time in the past, we have
experienced temporary difficulties in receiving shipments from our suppliers. The lead time required for
shipments of some of our components can be as long as four months. In addition, the lead time required to
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qualify new suppliers for lasers could be as long as a year, and the lead time required to qualify new suppliers of
other components could be as long as nine months. If we are unable to accurately predict our component needs,
or if our component supply is disrupted, we may miss market opportunities by not being able to meet the demand
for our systems. Further, a significant increase in the price of one or more of these components or subassemblies
included in our systems could seriously harm our results of operations.

Our largest customers account for a significant portion of our revenues, and our revenues wouid
significantly decline if one or more of these customers were to purchase significantly fewer of our systems
or they delayed or cancelled a large order

In 2000, 2001, 2002, sales to end user customers that individually represented at least five percent of our
revenues accounted for 27.8%, 42.5% and 46.8% of our revenues. In 2000, 2001 and 2002, sales to Intel, a key
customer, accounted for 19.4%, 33.4% and 46.8% of our revenues. We operate in the highly concentrated, capital
intensive semiconductor device manufacturing industry. Historically, a significant portion of our revenues in
each quarter and year has been derived from sales to relatively few customers, and we expect this trend to
continue. If any of our key customers were to purchase significantly fewer of our systems in the future, or if a
large order were delayed or cancelled, our revenues would significantly decline. We expect that we will continue
to depend on a small number of large customers for a significant portion of our revenues for at least the next
several years. In addition, as large semiconductor device manufacturers seek to establish closer relationships with
their suppliers, we expect that our customer base will become even more concentrated.

Our operating resuits have in the past varied and probably will in the future continue to vary significantly
from quarter to quarter, causing volatility in our stock price

Our quarterly operating results have varied significantly in the past and may continue to do so in the future,
which could cause our stock price to decline. Some of the factors that may influence our operating results and
subject our stock to extreme price and volume fluctuations include:

* changes in customer demand for our systems, which is influenced by economic conditions in the
semiconductor device industry, demand for products that use semiconductors, market acceptance of our
systems and those of our customers and changes in our product offerings;

» seasonal variations in customer demand, including the tendency of European sales to slow significantly
in the third quarter of each year;

» the timing, cancellation or delay of customer orders and shipments;

» product development costs, including increased research, development, engineering and marketing
expenses associated with our introduction of new products and product enhancements; and

+ the levels of our fixed expenses, including research and development costs associated with product
development, relative to our revenue levels.

In light of these factors and the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, we expect to continue to
experience significant fluctuations in quarterly and annual operating results. Moreover, many of our expenses are
fixed in the short-term which, together with the need for continued investment in research and development,
marketing and customer support, limits our ability to reduce expenses quickly. As a result, declines in net sales
could harm our business and the price of our common stock could substantially decline.

Cur revenue may vary significantly each quarter due to relatively small fluctuations in our unit sales

During any quarter, a significant portion of our revenue may be derived from the sale of a relatively small
number of systems. Our transparent film measurement systems range in price from approximately $30,000 to
$1.0 million per system, our opaque film measurement systems range in price from approximately $900,000 to
$1.8 million per system and our macro-defect detection systems range in price from approximately $650,000
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to $1.4 million per system. Accordingly, a small change in the number of systems we sell may also cause
significant changes in our operating results. This, in turn, could cause fluctuations in the market price of our
common stock.

Variations in the amount of time it takes for us to sell our systems may cause fluctuations in cur operating
resuits, which could cause our stock price to decline

Variations in the length of our sales cycles could cause our revenues, and thus our business, financial
condition and operating resuits, to fluctuate widely from period to period. This variation could cause our stock
price to decline. Cur customers generally take a long time to evaluate our film metrology systems and many
people are involved in the evaluation process. We expend significant resources educating and providing
information to our prospective customers regarding the uses and benefits of our systems in the semiconductor
fabrication process. The length of time it takes for us to make a sale depends upon many factors, including:

= the efforts of our sales force and our independent distributor;

o the complexity of the customer’s fabrication processes;

o the internal technical capabilities and sophistication of the customer;
o the customer’s budgetary constraints; and

o the quality and sophistication of the customer’s current metrology equipment.

Because of the number of factors influencing the sales process, the period between our initial contact with a
customer and the time when we recognize revenue from that customer, if ever, varies widely in length. Our sales
cycles, including the time it takes for us to build a product to customer specifications after receiving an order,
typically range from six to 15 months. Sometimes our sales cycles can be much longer, particularly with
customers in Japan. During these cycles, we commit substantial resources to our sales efforts in advance of
receiving any revenue, and we may never receive any revenue from a customer despite our sales efforts.

If we do make a sale, our customers often purchase only one of our systems, and then evaluate its
performance for a lengthy period before purchasing any more of our systems. The number of additional products
a customer purchases, if any, depends on many factors, including a customer’s capacity requirements. The period
between a customer’s initial purchase and any subsequent purchases can vary from six months to a year or
longer, and variations in the length of this period could cause further fluctuations in our operating results and
possibly in our stock price.

If we are not successful in developing new and enhanced products for the semiconductor device
manufacturing industry we will lose market share te our competitors

We operate in an industry that is subject to evolving industry standards, rapid technological changes, rapid
changes in consumer demands and the rapid introduction of new, higher perfcrmance systems with shorter
product life cycles. To be competitive in our demanding market, we must continually design, develop and
introduce in a timely manner new film metrology systems that meet the performance and price demands of
semiconductor device manufacturers. We must also continue to refine our current systems so that they remain
competitive. We may experience difficulties or delays in our development efforts with respect to new systems,
and we may not ultimately be successful in developing them. Any significant delay in releasing new systems
could adversely affect our reputation, give a competitor a first-to-market advantage or cause a competitor to
achieve greater market share.

Even if we are able to successfully develop new products, if these products do not gain general market
acceptance we will not be able to generate revenues and recover our research and development costs

Metrology product development is inherently risky because it is difficuli to foresee developments in
semiconductor device manufacturing technology, coordinate technical personnel, and identify and eliminate
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metrology system design flaws. Any new systems we introduce may not achieve a significant degree of market
acceptance or, once accepted, may fail to sell well for a sustained period.

We expect to spend a significant amount of time and resources developing new systems and refining our
existing systems.* In light of the long product development cycles inherent in our industry, these expenditures
will be made well in advance of the prospect of deriving revenue from the sale of those systems. Our ability to
commercially introduce and successfully market new systems is subject to a wide variety of challenges during
the development cycle, including start-up bugs, design defects, and other matters that could delay introduction of
these systems. In addition, since our customers are not obligated by long-term contracts to purchase our systems,
our anticipated product orders may not materialize, or orders that do materialize may be cancelled. As a result, if
we do not achieve market acceptance of new products, we may not be able to realize sufficient sales to recoup
research and development expenditures.

Even if we are able to develop new products that gain market acceptance, sales of new products could
impair cur ability to sell existing product lines

Competition from our new S-ultra systems could have a negative effect on sales of our other transparent
thin film metrology systems and the prices we could charge for these systems. We may also divert sales and
marketing resources from our current systems in order to successfully launch and promote our S-ultra,
WaferView or next generation systems. This diversion of resources could have a further negative effect on sales
of our current systems. Similarly, competition from our new MeraPULSE-II system could have a negative impact
on MetaPULSE systems,

Additionally, the new line of i-MOD products will incorporate some of our advanced metrologies into small
footprint modules that are designed to be integrated into process tool equipment. These integrated metrology
systems are unlikely to replace our existing stand-alone systems because of their relative lack of accessibility and
because the range of applications will be limited. However, there could be a negative effect on stand-alone
systems that use the same technology.

If our relationships with our large customers deteriorate, our product development activities could be
jeopardized

The success of our product development efforts depends on our ability to anticipate market trends and the
price, performance and functionality requirements of semiconductor device manufacturers. In order to anticipate
these trends and ensure that critical development projects proceed in a coordinated manner, we must continue to
collaborate closely with our largest customers. Our relationships with these and other customers provide us with
access to valuable information regarding trends in the semiconductor device industry, which enables us to better
plan our product development activities. If our current relationships with our large customers are impaired, or if
we are unable to develop similar collaborative relationships with important customers in the future, our long-term
ability to produce commercially successful systems will be impaired.

QOur ability to reduce costs is limited by our ongoing need to invest in research and development

Our industry is characterized by the need for continual investment in research and development as well as
customer service and support. As a result of our need to maintain our spending levels in these areas, our
operating results could be materially harmed if our revenues fall below expectations. In addition, because of our
emphasis on research and development and technological innovation, our operating costs may increase further in
the future.

We may fail to adeguately protect our intellectual property and, therefore, lose our competitive advantage

Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon our ability to obtain and maintain
proprietary technology for our principal product families, and we rely, in part, on patent, trade secret and
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trademark law to protect that technology. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property, it will be
easier for our competitors to sell competing products. We own or have licensed a number of patents relating to
our transparent and opaque thin film metrology and macro-defect inspection systems, and have filed applications
for additional patents. Any of our pending patent applications may be rejected, and we may not in the future be
able to develop additional proprietary technology that is patentable. In addition, the patents we do own or that
have been issued or licensed to us may not provide us with competitive advantages and may be challenged by
third parties. Third parties may also design around these patents.

In addition to patent protection, we rely upon trade secret protection for our confidential and proprietary
information and technology. We routinely enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees. However, in
the event that these agreements may be breached, we may not have adequate remedies. Our confidential and
proprietary information and technology might also be independently developed by or become otherwise known
to third parties.

Successful infringement claims by third parties could result in substantial damages, lost product sales and
the loss of important intellectual property rights by us

Our commercial success depends in part on our ability to avoid infringing or misappropriating patents or
other proprietary rights owned by third parties. From time to time we may receive communications from third
parties asserting that our products or systems infringe, or may infringe, the proprietary rights of these third
parties. These claims of infringement may lead to protracted and costly litigation which could require us to pay
substantial damages or have the sale of our products or systems stopped by an injunction. Infringement claims
could also cause product or system delays or require us to redesign our products or systems, and these delays
could result in the loss of substantial revenues. We may also be required to obtain a license from the third party
or cease activities utilizing the third party’s proprietary rights. We may not be able to enter into such a license or
such license may not be available on commercially reasonable terms. The loss of important intellectual property
rights could therefore prevent our ability to sell our systems, or make the sale of such systems more expensive
for us.

Protection of our intellectnal property rights, or the efforts of third parties to enforce their own
intelfectual property rights against us, has ir the past resulted and may in the future result in costly and
time-consuming litigation

We may be required to initiate litigation in order to enforce any patents issued to or licensed by us, or to
determine the scope or validity of a third party’s patent or other proprietary rights. In addition, we may be subject
to lawsuits by third parties seeking to enforce their own intellectual property rights. Any such litigation,
regardless of outcome, could be expensive and time consuming, and could subject us to significant liabilities or
require us to re-engineer our product or obtain expensive licenses from third parties.

Our efforts to protect our intellectual property may be less effective in some foreign countries where
intellectual property rights are not as well protected as in the United States

In 2002, 40.6% of our revenue was derived from sales in foreign countries, including certain countries in
Asia such as Taiwan, Korea, Singapore and Japan. The laws of some foreign countries do not protect our
proprietary rights to as great an extent as do the laws of the United States, and many U.S. companies have
encountered substantial problems in protecting their proprietary rights against infringement in such countries,
some of which are countries in which we have sold and continue to sell systems. For example, Taiwan is not a
signatory of the Patent Cooperation Treaty, which is designed to specify rules and methods for defending
intellectual property internationally. The publication of a patent in Taiwan prior to the filing of a patent in
Taiwan would invalidate the ability of a company to obtain a patent in Taiwan. Similarly, in contrast to the
United States where the contents of patents remain confidential during the patent prosecution process, the
contents of a patent are published upon filing which provides competitors an advance view of the contents of a
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patent application prior to the establishment of patent rights. There is a risk that our means of protecting our
proprietary rights may not be adequate in these countries. For example, our competitors in these countries may
independently develop similar technology or duplicate our systems. If we fail to adequately protect our
intellectual property in these countries, it would be easier for our competitors to sell competing products in those
countries.

QOur current and potential competitors have significantly greater resources than we do, and increased
competition could impair sales of our products or cause us to reduce our prices

The market for semiconductor capital equipment is highly competitive. We face substantial competition
from established companies in each of the markets we serve. We principally compete with KLLA-Tencor and
Therma-Wave. We compete to a lesser extent with companies such as Dai Nippon Screen, Nanometrics and
Sopra. Each of our product lines also competes with products that use different metrology techniques. Some of
our competitors have greater financial, engineering, manufacturing and marketing resources, broader product
offerings and service capabilities and larger installed customer bases than we do. As a result, our competitors
may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or market developments by devoting
greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of products, which could impair sales of our products.
Moreover, there may be significant merger and acquisition activity among our competitors and potential
competitors. These transactions by our competitors and potential competitors may provide them with a
competitive advantage over us by enabling them to rapidly expand their product offerings and service capabilities
to meet a broader range of customer needs. Many of our customers and potential customers in the semiconductor
device manufacturing industry are large companies that require global support and service for their
semiconductor capital equipment. While we believe that our global support and service infrastructure is sufficient
to meet the needs of our customers and potential customers, our larger competitors have more extensive
infrastructures than we do, which could place us at a disadvantage when competing for the business of global
semiconductor device manufacturers,

Many of our competitors are investing heavily in the development of new systems that will compete directly
with ours. We have from time to time selectively reduced prices on our systems in order to protect our market
share, and competitive pressures may necessitate further price reductions. We expect our competitors in each
product area to continue to improve the design and performance of their products and to introduce new products
with competitive prices and performance characteristics. Such product introductions by our competitors would
likely cause us to decrease the prices of our systems and increase the level of discounts we grant our customers.

Because of the high cost of switching equipment vendors in cur markets, it is sometimes difficult for us to
win customers from our competitors even if our systems are superior ¢o theirs

We believe that once a semiconductor device manufacturer has selected one vendor’s capital equipment for
a production-line application, the manufacturer generally relies upon that capital equipment and, to the extent
possible, subsequent generations of the same vendor’s equipment, for the life of the application. Once a vendor’s
equipment has been installed in a production line application, a semiconductor device manufacturer must often
make substantial technical modifications and may experience production-line downtime in order to switch to
another vendor’s equipment. Accordingly, unless our systems offer performance or cost advantages that
outweigh a customer’s expense of switching to our systems, it will be difficult for us to achieve significant sales
to that customer once it has selected another vendor’s capital equipment for an application.

We must attract and retain key personnel with knowledge of semiconductor device manufacturing and
metrology equipment to help support cur future growth, and competition for such personnel in our
industry is high

Our success depends to a significant degree upon the continued contributions of our key management,
engineering, sales and marketing, customer support, finance and manufacturing personnel. The loss of any of
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these key personnel, who would be extremely difficult to replace, could harm our business and operating results.
During downturns in our industry, we have often experienced significant employee attrition, and we may
experience further attrition in the event of a future downturn. Although we have employment and noncompetition
agreements with key members of our senior management team, including Messrs. McLaughlin, Loiterman and
Roth, these individuals or other key employees may nevertheless leave our company. We do not have key person
life insurance on any of our executives. In addition, to support our future growth, we will need to attract and
retain additional qualified employees. Competition for such personnel in our industry is intense, and we may not
be successful in attracting and retaining qualified employees.

We manufacture ail of cur systems at a single facility, and any prolonged disruption in the operations of
that facility could have a material adverse effect on our revenues

We produce all of our systems in our manufacturing facility located in Ledgewood, New Jersey. Our
manufacturing processes are highly complex and require sophisticated and costly equipment and a specially
designed facility. As a result, any prolonged disruption in the operations of our manufacturing facility, whether
due to technical cr labor difficulties, destruction of or damage as a result of a fire or any other reason, could
seriously harm our ability to satisfy our customer order deadlines. If we cannot timely deliver our systems, our
revenues could be adversely affected.

We rely upon an independent distributor for a significant portion of sur sales, and a disruption in our
relationship could have a negative impact on our sales in Japan

Historically, a portion of our sales in Japan has been made through our sole independent distributor, Tokyo
Electron Limited (TEL). In 2000, 2001 and 2002 sales to TEL accounted for 21.9%, 14.8% and 6.8% of our
revenues. We expect that sales through TEL will represent a portion of our sales for the next several years.* TEL
also provides field service to our customers. The activities of TEL are not within our control. A reduction in the
sales or service efforts or financial viability of TEL, or a termination of our relationship with them, could harm
our sales, our financial results and our ability to support our customers. Although we believe that we maintain
good relations with TEL, such relationship may nevertheless deteriorate in the future.

Because we derive a significant portion of our revenues from sales in Asia, our sales and resuits of
operations could be adversely affected by the instability of Asian economies

Our sales to customers in Asian markets represented approximately 39.5%, 36.6% and 30.1% of our
revenues in 2000, 2601 and 2002. Countries in the Asia Pacific region, including Japan, Korea, China, Singapore
and Taiwan, each of which accounted for a significant portion of our business in that region, have experienced
currency, banking and equity market weaknesses in the past. We expect that turbulence in the Asian markets
could adversely affect our sales in future periods.

Due to our significant level of international sales, we are subject to operational, financial and political risks
such as unexpected changes in regulatory reguirements, tariffs, pelitical and economic instability,
outbreaks of hestilities, adverse tax consequences and difficulties in managing foreign sales representatives
and foreign branch operations

International sales accounted for approximately 54.7%, 53.7% and 40.6% of our revenues in 2060, 2001 and
2002. We anticipate that international sales will account for a significant portion of our revenue for at least the
next five years.* Due to the significant level of our international sales, we are subject to material risks which
include: '

Unexpected changes in regulatory requirements including tariffs and other market barriers. The
semiconductor device industry is a high-visibility industry in many of the European and Asian countries in which
we sell our products. Because the governments of these countries have provided extensive financial support to
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our semiconductor device manufacturing customers in these countries, we believe that our customers could be
disproportionately affected by any trade embargoes, excise taxes or other restrictions imposed by their
governments on trade with United States companies such as ourselves. Any such restrictions could lead to a
reduction in our sales to customers in these countries.

Political and economic instability. We are subject to various global risks related to political and economic
instabilities in countries in which we derive sales. If terrorist activities, armed conflict, civil or military unrest or
political instability occurs outside of the U.S., such events may result in reduced demand for our products. There
is considerable political instability in Taiwan related to its disputes with China and in South Korea related to its
disputes with North Korea. In addition, several Asian countries, particularly Japan, have experienced significant
economic instability. An outbreak of hostilities or other political upheaval in Taiwan or South Korea, or an
economic downturn in Japan, would likely harm the operations of our customers in these countries, causing our
sales to suffer. The effect of such events on our revenues could be material because we derive substantial
revenues from sales to semiconductor device foundries in Taiwan such as TSMC and UMC, from memory chip
manufacturers in South Korea such as Hynix and Samsung, and from semiconductor device manufacturers in
Japan such as NEC and Toshiba.

Difficulties in staffing and managing foreign branch operations. During periods of tension between the
governments of the United States and other countries, it is often difficult for United States companies such as
ourselves to staff and manage operations in such countries.

Since a substantial portion of our revenues are derived from sales in other countries yet are denominated
in U0.S. doliars, we could experience a significant decline in sales or experience collection problems in the
event the dollar becomes more expensive relative (o Jocal currencies

A substantial portion of our international sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, if the doliar rises
in value in relation to foreign currencies, our systems will become more expensive to customers outside the
United States and less competitive with systems produced by competitors outside the United States. Such
conditions could negatively impact our international sales. Foreign sales also expose us to collection risk in the
event it becomes more expensive for our foreign customers to convert their local currencies into U.S. dollars.

Terrorist attacks and terrorist threats may negatively impact ali aspects of our operations, revenues, costs
and stock price

The terrorist attacks in September 2001 in the United States and the U.S. response to these attacks and the
resulting decline in consumer confidence has had a substantial adverse impact on the economy. If consumer
confidence does not recover, our revenues and profitability may be adversely impacted in 2003 and beyond. In
addition, any similar future events may disrupt our operations or those of our customers and suppliers.

In addition, these events have had and may continue to have an adverse impact on the U.S. and world
economy in general and consumer confidence and spending in particular, which could harm our sales. Any of
these events could increase volatility in the U.S. and world financial markets, which could harm our stock price
and may limit the capital resources available to us and our customers or suppliers. This could have a significant
impact on our operating results, revenues and costs and may result in increased volatility in the market price of
our common stock.

We may cheose te acquire new and complementary businesses, products or technologies instead of
developing them ourselves, and may be unable to complete these acquisitions or may not be able to
successfully integrate an acquired business, including YMG, in a cost-effective and non-disruptive manner

Our success depends on our ability to continually enhance and broaden our product offerings in response to
changing technologies, customer demands and competitive pressures. To this end, we may choose to acquire new
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and complementary businesses, products, or technologies instead of developing them ourselves. We may,
however, face competition for acquisition targets from larger and more established companies with greater
financial resources, making it more difficult for us to complete acquisitions. We do not know if we will be able to
complete any acquisitions, or whether we will be able to successfully integrate any acquired business, operate it
profitably or retain its key employees. Integrating any business, product or technology we acquire could be
expensive and time-consuming, could disrupt our ongoing business and could distract our management. In
addition, in order to finance any acquisitions, we might need to raise additional funds through public or private
equity or debt financings. In that event, we could be forced to obtain financing on terms that are not favorable to
us and, in the case of equity financing, that result in dilution to our stockholders. If we are unable to integrate any
acquired entities, products or technologies effectively, our business, financial condition and operating results will
suffer. In addition, any amortization of intangible assets or other assets or charges resulting from the costs of
acquisitions could harm our business and operating results.

In September 2002, we completed our acquisition of YMG, a semiconductor capital equipment supplier, and
we are in the process of integrating YMG into our company. We may not successfully address the integration
challenges in a timely manner, or at all, and we may not realize the anticipated benefits or synergies of the YMG
transaction or of any other transaction to the extent, or in the timeframe, anticipated. Moreover, the timeframe for
achieving benefits may be dependent partially upon the actions of employees, suppliers or other third parties.
Even if the YMG acquisition is successfully integrated, we may not receive the expected benefits of the
transaction. Managing acquisitions requires varying levels of management resources, which may divert our
attention from other business operations. These transactions also have resulted and may in the future result in
significant costs and expenses and charges to earnings. In the case of the YMG acquisition, these costs and
expenses include those related to in-process research and development charges and legal, accounting and
financial advisory fees.

If we deliver systems with defects, our credibility wili be harmed and the sales and market acceptance of
our systems will decrease

Our systems are complex and sometimes have contained errors, defects and bugs when introduced. If we
deliver systems with errors, defects or bugs, our credibility and the market acceptance and sales of our systems
could be harmed. Further, if our systems contain errors, defects or bugs, we may be required to expend
significant capital and resources to alleviate such problems. Defects could also lead to product liability as a result
of product liability lawsuits against us or against our customers. We have agreed to indemnify our customers in
some circumstances against liability arising from defects in our systems. Our product liability policy currently
provides only $2.0 million of coverage per claim with an overall umbrella limit of $4.0 million. In the event of a
successful product liability claim, we could be obligated to pay damages significantly in excess of our product
liability insurance limits.

Provisions of our charter documents and Delaware law could discourage potertial acquisition proposals
and could delay, deter or prevent a change in contro! of our company

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may inhibit changes in control of our company not
approved by our board of directors. These provisions also limit the circumstances in which a premium can be
paid for the common stock, and in which a proxy contest for control of our board may be initiated. These
provisions provide for:

o a prohibition on stockholder actions through written consent;

° arequirement that special meetings of stockholders be called only by our chief executive officer or
board of directors;

o advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and director nominations by stockholders;

o limitations on the ability of stockholders to amend, alter or repeal our by-laws; and
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= the anthority of our board to issue, without stockholder approval, preferred stock with such terms as the

board may determine.

We will also be afforded the protections of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which

could have similar effects.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive office building is located at One Flanders Road in Flanders, New Jersey. We own
and lease facilities in the United States and 5 other countries for engineering, sales and service related purposes.
The following table indicates the general location, the general purpose and the square footage of these facilities.
The expiration years of the leases covering the leased facilities are also indicated.

Approximate Lease Expiration
Location Facility Purpose Square Footage Year, Unless Owned
Flanders, New Jersey Executive Office 20,000 Owned
Ledgewood, New Jersey Manufacturing 31,000 2009
Mt. Arlington, New Jersey  Engineering and Service 23,000 2005
Richardson, Texas Yield Metrology Group 21,000 Owned
Houston, Texas Engineering 3,000 2004
Austin, Texas Sales 1,000 2003
Chandler, Arizona Service 1,000 2003
Shanghai, China Service 3,000 2004
Scotland, United Kingdom  Service 1,000 2003
Seoul, Korea Service 2,000 2007
Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Service 6,000 2004
Tainan, Taiwan Service 2,000 2003
Singapore Service 2,000 2003

We believe that our existing facilities and capital equipment are adequate to meet our current requirements,

and that suitable additional or substitute space is available on commercially reasonable terms if needed.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of
business. The Company is not involved in any material legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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Item 5. Market Price for Registrant’s Common Eguity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “RTEC.” The following table
sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices per share of our common stock as reported on
the Nasdaq National Market.

Price Range of
Common Stock

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2001

First QUarter ... .. ..ottt e $53.69 $26.75

Second QUarter .. .......tiit e $54.50 $27.25

Third Quarter . ............ ... e $46.26 $22.30

FourthQuarter ....... ..ottt $41.85 $15.52
Year Ended December 31, 2002

First QUarter . ... ... ...ttt et e $46.85 $31.85

Second QUAarter ... ... .. $43.13 52041

Third QUATTET . .. .ottt e e $26.00 $ 9.32

FourthQuarter ........ ... i i $21.41 $ 9.38

As of January 29, 2003, there were 57 stockholders of record of our common stock.

We have never declared or paid a cash dividend on our Common Stock and do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future.* We currently intend to retain our earnings, if any, for the development
of our business. The declaration of any future dividends by us is within the discretion of our Board of Directors
and will be dependent on our eamings, financial condition and capital requirements as well as any other factors
deemed relevant by our Board of Directors.

Certain Equity Compensation Plan Information included in Item 12 of Part III, here of, is hereby
incorporated into this Item 5 of Part II.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-X, and “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2001
and 2002 and the statement of income data for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 set forth
below were derived from audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The
balance sheet data as of December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, and the statement of income data for the years
ended December 31, 1998 and 1999 were derived from audited financial statements not included herein.
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Statement of Income (Loss) Data:
Revenues(1) ... i
Cost Of FEVENUES . ... ittt e e e

Gross Profit ...ttt

Operating expenses:
Research and development . ........... ... ... . .
In-process research and development ......... ... ... ... ...
Selling, general and administrative .. ........... ... .l
AMOrtzation(4) .. ... e

Total Operating eXpenses . .. ... v.vu ittt e

Operating income (10SS) . ... ..ottt e
Interest expense (income) and other,net ................... .. .....

Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes,extraordinary
item and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ......
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . ........covverievini ...

Income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle ............. ... ... ...l

Extraordinary item (net of tax of $5)(2) . ....... ... .. il

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (net of tax of
B024) e e

Net income ([088) ..o v vttt e e
Preferred stock dividends ............ ... ... ...

Net income (loss) per share available to common stockholders from

continuing operations:

Basic:
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and curmulative effect of a

change in accounting principle ............. ... L.

Extraordinary ftem .............co i
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ...........
Preferred stock dividends . ........ ... .. ... o ol

Diluted:
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle ............. . ... ... ..
Extraordinary item ........... . ... e
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ...........
Preferred stock dividends ............... ... ... ...,

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders ............

Pro forma amounts assuming the accounting change is applied
retroactively (See Note 2B of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements):

Income (loss) before extraordinary item ... ... .......ovvii ...

Per share amounts:

Income (loss) available to common stockholders . ...................

Per share amounts:
Basic ...
Diluted . . ..o
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic L. e
Diluted . ... e e

Balance Sheet Data:

Cashandcashequivalents ........ ... ... .. ..o,
Short-term inVvestments ......... ..ot iiiiiei i,
Working capital (deficit) .......... ...
Total @SSElS ... .
Long-term debt, less current portion .. ..o
Redeemable preferred stock .......... .. . .o il
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) .............. ... ... . ...
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) .................... ... ... ...,

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002(3)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
$ 20,106 $ 38,095 §$ 88,107 $ 79,398 $ 57,445
13,179 18,301 41,854 39,798 33,576
6,927 19,794 46,253 39.600 23,869
5,096 5,003 9,022 11,625 11,828
— — — — 3,500
7,077 9,588 14,463 12,171 11,025
4,208 436 339 339 412
16,381 15,027 23,824 24,135 26,765
(9,454) 4,767 22,429 15,465 (2,896)
4,011 3,680 2,174) 2,774) (2,050)
(13,465) 1,087 24,603 18,239 (846)
613 2,179 (431) 6,499 585
(14,078) 3,266 25,034 11,740 (1,431)
— 427 — — —_
— — 1,458 — —
(14,078) 2,839 23,576 11,740 (1,431)
507 508 — _ —_
$ (14,585 % 2,331 §% 23576 § 11,740 $ (1,431)
$ 313 3 041 $ 169 3§ 074 % (0.09)
— (0.05) — — —
— —_— (0.09) — —
0.11) (0.06) —_ — —
$ 324 % 030 % 160 $ 074 3 (0.09)
$ (3.13) $ 031 $ 158 $ 071 % (0.09)
- (0.04) — — —
—_ — (0.09) — —
0.1 (0.05) — — —
3 3.24) §$ 022 $ 149 § 071 §$ (0.09)
$ (13,610) $ 2485 $ 25,034 % 11,740 % (1,431)
3 (3.02) $ 032 % 169 § 074 §$ {0.09)
3 3.02) $ 024 § 158 § 071 % (0.09)
$ 14117 § 1,550 $ 25,034 §$ 11,740 3 (1,431
$ 3.13) $ 020 §$ 169 §$ 074 § (0.09)
$ (3.13) $ 015 $ 158 $ 071§ (0.09)
4,503,396 7,880,622 14,773,295 15,899,933 16,215,237
4,503,396 10,431,477 15,805,188 16,531,461 16,215,237
December 31,
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
$ 431 § 35076 % 29736 % 94642 % 42,047
—_ — — — 31,223
(1,052) 49,217 70,122 128,647 106,051
21,121 64,947 98.554 147,798 161,963
25,370 — — — —_
6,614 — — —_ —
(30,032) (27.193) (3,617) 8,123 6,692
(26,759 57,610 83,508 142,150 144,081




(1) Our cost of revenues for 1998 includes a $1.4 million expense for the write-down of inventory to net
realizable value.

(2) In 1999, an extraordinary loss was recorded for the early extinguishment of debt.

(3) Statement of income (loss) data for 2002 reflects results of operations of YMG since September 25, 2002.

(4) Effective January 1, 2002 we adopted the provisions prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Intangible
Assets.” Consequently, we ceased amortizing goodwill as of such date. Amortization expense relating to
goodwill is immaterial in periods prior to 2602.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We are a worldwide leader in the design, development, manufacture and support of process control
metrology systems used in semiconductor device manufacturing. Gur thin film measurement proprietary systems
measure the thickness and other properties of thin films applied during various steps in the manufacture of
integrated circuits, enabling semiconductor device manufacturers to improve yields and reduce overall
production costs. Our macro-defect inspection proprietary systems detect and classify defects in semiconductor
wafers. We provide our customers with a flexible full-fab metrology solution by offering families of systems that
meet their transparent and opaque thin film measurement and macro-defect inspection needs in various
applications across the fabrication process. Qur three primary families of metrology solutions offer leading-edge
metrology technology, flexible systems cost-effectively designed for specific manufacturing applications and a
common production-worthy automation platform, all backed by worldwide support.

Historically, a significant portion of our revenues in each quarter and year has been derived from sales to
relatively few end user customers, and we expect this trend to continue. In 2000, 2001 and 2002 sales to end user
customers that individually represented at least five percent of our revenues accounted for 27.8%, 42.5% and
46.8% of our revenues. In 2000, 2001 and 2002 sales to Intel accounted for 19.4%, 33.4% and 46.8% of our

revenues.

In addition, a significant portion of our revenues in each quarter and year has been derived from sales to
Tokyo Electron Limited (TEL), our sole distributor. TEL purchases our products for ultimate distribution to
customers in Japan. In 2000, 2001 and 2002 sales to TEL accounted for 21.9%, 14.8% and 6.8% of our revenues.
We expect that sales to TEL will continue to represent a portion of our revenues for at least the next several
years.*

We do not have purchase contracts with any of our customers or distributors that obligate them to continue
to purchase our products, and they could cease purchasing products from us at any time. A delay in purchase or
cancellation by any of our large customers could cause quarterly revenues to vary significantly. In addition,
during a given quarter, a significant portion of our revenues may be derived from the sale of a relatively smalil
number of systems. Our transparent film measurement systems range in price from approximately $30,000 to
$1.0 million per system, our opaque film measurement systems range in price from approximately $900,000 to
$1.8 million per system and our macro-defect inspection systems range in price from approximately $650,000 to
$1.4 million per system. Accordingly, a small change in the number of systems we sell may also cause
significant changes in our operating results. Because fluctuations in the timing of orders from our major
customers or distributors or in the number of our individual systems we sell could cause our revenues to fluctuate
significantly in any given quarter or year, we do not believe that period-to-period comparisons of our financial
results are necessarily meaningful, and they should not be relied upon as an indication of our future performance.

A significant portion of our revenues has been derived from customers outside of the United States, and we
expect this trend to continue.* In 2000, approximately 54.7% of our revenues were derived from customers

outside of the United States, of which 39.5% were derived from customers in Asia and 12.1% were derived from
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customers in Europe. In 2001, approximately 53.7% of our revenues were derived from customers outside of the
United States, of which 36.6% were derived from customers in Asia and 14.5% were derived from customers in
Europe. In 2002, approximately 40.6% of our revenues were derived from customers outside of the United
States, of which 30.1% were derived from customers in Asia and 10.4% were derived from customers in Europe.
Substantially all of our revenues to date have been denominated in United States dollars.

The sales cycle for our systems typically ranges from six to 15 months, and can be longer when our
customers are evaluating new technology. Due to the length of these cycles, we invest significantly in research
and development and sales and marketing in advance of generating revenues related to these investments.
Additionally, the rate and timing of customer orders may vary significantly from month to month. Accordingly,
if sales of our products do not occur when we expect, and we are unable to adjust our estimates on a timely basis,
our expenses and inventory levels may increase relative to revenues and total assets.

On September 25, 2002, we acquired ISOA, Inc., which we renamed the Yield Metrology Group (YMG).
YMG had licensed its technology for use in the semiconductor industry and recently began transitioning to a
semiconductor capital equipment supplier. YMG’s core technologies are knowledge-based algorithms used in
wafer macro-defect detection and classification. The purchase consideration for YMG, including direct
acquisition costs, was $25.2 million in cash. The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations. Results of operations of YMG have been included since September 235,
2002 and will affect comparisons from year to year.

Resuits of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our statements of income data as percentages of our
revenues. Our results of operations are reported as one reportable business segment.

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
REVEIUES ...ttt et e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
CoSt Of TEVENUES « .. ottt e e 47.5 50.1 58.4
Gross Profit . . .. it 52.5 49.9 41.6
Operating expenses: .
Researchand development . ........... ... ... ... .. i 10.2 14.7 20.6
In-process research and development .......................... — — 6.1
Selling, general and administrative ............... . ... .. ... ... 16.4 15.3 19.2
AMOTIZALION .« . ottt et e e et et e e e 0.4 04 0.7
Total OPerating EXPEeNSES . . ... v verueeuntiae et 27.0 304 46.6
Operating income (1088) ... ... i i 25.5 19.5 5.0)
Interest expense (income) and other,net ............................ (2.5) 3.9 (3.6)
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes and cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle ......................... 28.0 23.0 (1.5)
Provision {benefit) forincome taxes ........... ... ..., (0.5) 8.2 1.0
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting
PHnCIple . ... . e 28.5 14.8 (2.5)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ................. 1.7 — —
Netincome (108S) . oo oottt e et e e 268% 148% (2.5%)




Results of Operations 2000, 2601 and 2002

Revenues. Our revenues are derived from the sale of our metrology systems, services and spare parts. Cur
revenues were $38.1 million, $79.4 million and $57.4 million in the years 2000, 2001 and 2002. These changes
represent a decrease of 9.9% from 2000 to 2001 and a decrease of 27.7% from 2001 to 2002. The decreases in
revenues from 2000 through 2002 were primarily due to an industry-wide slowdown in demand for
semiconductor devices and equipment, which resulted in a decrease in orders for our products as well as
postponements and cancellations of existing orders. Revenues from customers outside of the United States
represented 54.7%, 53.7% and 40.6% of our revenues in 2000, 2001 and 2002. Revenues from customers outside
of the United States decreased as a percentage of revenues from 2000 through 2002 as a result of decreased sales
to existing customers in Europe and Asia. We expect that revenues generated from customers outside of the
United States will continue to account for a significant percentage of our revenues.*

Cur business continues to be impacted by the slowdown in economies worldwide. We have been further
affected by the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry with recurring periods of oversupply and
overcapacity. These factors have resulted in a downturn in demand for our products. We currently do not have
visibility as to the length or severity of the downturn. We do expect demand for our products to improve once
customers adjust to the period of oversupply and overcapacity and historical levels of capital expenditures
resume.* There has been no current evidence, however, that customer buying patierns will significantly increase
in the near term. There is a risk that the slowdown may be prolonged further. Certain of our customers, including
Intel, have announced anticipated declines in overall capital expenditures for 2003.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit. Cost of revenues consists of the labor, material and overhead costs of
manufacturing our systems, royalties, spare parts cost and the cost associated with our worldwide service support
infrastructure. Our gross profit was $46.3 million, $39.6 million and $23.9 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002.
These changes represent decreases of 14.4% from 2000 to 2001 and 39.7% from 2001 to 2002. Our gross profit
represented 52.5%, 49.9% and 41.6% of our revenues in 2000, 2001 and 2002. The decreases in gross profit from
2000 through 2002 were primarily due to a decrease in business volume, which resulted in customer support and
fixed manufacturing costs being a higher component of a lower revenue base.

Research and Development. The thin film transparent and opaque process control metrology market is
characterized by continuous technological development and product innovations. We believe that the rapid and
ongoing development of new products and enhancements to existing products, including the transition to copper
and low-x dielectrics, the progression to 300 mm wafers, the continuous shrinkage in critical dimensions, and the
evolution of ultra-thin gate process control, is critical to our success. Accordingly, we devote a significant
portion of our technical, management and financial resources to research and development programs. Research
and development expenditures consist primarily of salaries and related expenses of employees engaged in
research, design and development activities. They also include consulting fees, prototype equipment expenses
and the cost of related supplies. Our research and development expenditures were, $9.0 million, $11.6 million
and $11.8 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002. These changes represent increases of 28.9% from 2000 to 2001 and
1.7% from 2001 to 2002. Research and development expenditures represented 10.2%, 14.6% and 20.6% of
revenues in 2000, 2001 and 2002. The increase in research and development expenses from 2000 through 2002
resulted from higher personnel costs, parts costs associated with new product development and engineering
facilities expansion.

In-Process Research and Development.  The acquisition of YMG resulted in our recording of a one-time
expense of $3.5 million for the write-off of in-process research and development (IPRD). The IPRD we acquired
related to automated defect inspection technology to be used in stand alone and integrated metrology equipment.
At the time of the acquisition, we determined that the IPRD had not reached technological feasibility and that it
did not have an alternative future use. Accordingly, this amount was immediately expensed in the consolidated
statement of operations upon the acquisition date.
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Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense is primarily comprised of
salaries and related costs for sales, marketing, and general administrative personnel, as well as commissions, and
other non-personnel related expenses. Our selling, general and administrative expense was $14.5 million, $12.2
million and $11.0 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002. These changes represent decreases of 15.8% from 2000 to
2001 and 9.4% from 2001 to 2002. Selling, general and administrative expense represented 16.4%, 15.3% and
19.2% of revenues in 2000, 2001 and 2002. The decreases from 2000 through 2002 resulted from lower
commissions, the completion of certain infrastructure projects in prior periods and cost reduction initiatives that
were implemented as a result of the semiconductor industry slowdown.

Amortization. Our expense for amortization was $0.3 million in 2000 and 2001 and $0.4 million in 2002.
The increase in 2002 is attributable to the amortization of intangible assets having definite useful lives acquired
from the acquisition of YMG. Effective January 1, 2002 we adopted the provisions prescribed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142,
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets”. Consequently, we ceased amortizing goodwill as of such date. Amortization
expense relating to goodwill is immaterial in 2000 and 2001.

Interest Income and other, net. Interest income and other, net was $2.2 million, $2.8 million and $2.1
million in 2000, 2001 and 2002. The increase from 2000 to 2001 resulted from investing the net proceeds from
our follow-on public offering in February 2001. The decrease from 2001 to 2002 resulted from lower interest
rates and the use of cash in the acquisition of YMG as described further in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes
prescribed by the FASB in SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Our provision (benefit) for income
taxes was a benefit of $0.4 million in 2000, a provision of $6.5 million in 2001 and a provision of $0.6 million in
2002. Our effective tax rate was (2%), 36% and (69%) in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. During 1998, the
net deferred tax asset was reduced to zero with a valuation allowance as a result of recurring losses and with the
uncertainty regarding our ability to generate sufficient taxable income. In 2000, based on industry and internal
forecasts combined with the successful completion of our initial public offering and the reduction of debt, we
reduced the deferred tax valuation allowance by $8.6 million, for certain deferred tax assets that more likely than
not would be realized. Despite losses incurred in 2002 and recent downward trends in the industry, management
believes it is more likely than not the Company will realize the benefits of its deferred tax assets.* We computed
our effective tax rate for 2001 on prevailing federal and state rates adjusted for research and development tax
credits and income derived from tax exempt interest. Qur effective tax rate for 2002 is less than the expected
combined federal and state tax rates of 40% primarily due to the non-deductibility of the IPRD charge for book
and tax purposes.

Change in Accounting Principle. Effective January 1, 2000, we changed our method of accounting for
revenue recognition to comply with Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101,
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” (SAB 101). Revenue is now recognized upon shipment provided
that there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. Certain sales of our products are sold
and accounted for as multiple element arrangements, consisting of the sale of the product and installation. We
generally recognize revenue upon delivery of the product, which is prior to installation, as the actions required to
perform the installation are deemed to be perfunctory. Installation is deemed to be perfunctory based on our sales
and installation history for similar products and customers and the fact that other vendors can and have
performed the installation. When customer acceptance is subjective and not obtained prior to shipment, we defer
a portion of the product revenue until such time as positive affirmation of acceptance has been obtained from the
customer. Customer acceptance is generally based on our products meeting published performance
specifications. The amount of revenue allocated to the shipment of products is done on a residual method basis.
Under this method, the total arrangement value is allocated first to undelivered contract elements, based on their
fair values, with the remainder being allocated to product revenue. The fair value of installation services is based
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upon billable hourly rates and the estimated time to complete the service. Revenue related to undelivered
installation services is deferred until such time as installation is completed at the customer’s site. Previously, we
had recognized revenue upon shipment of equipment to customers, which usually preceded installation and final
customer acceptance, provided final customer acceptance and collection of the related receivable were probable.
The effect of the change was to decrease revenue by $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2002, we had $73.3 million of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments and
$106.1 million in working capital. At December 31, 2001 we had $94.6 million of cash and cash equivalents and
$128.6 million in working capital. At December 31, 2000 our cash and cash equivalents totaled $29.7 million,
while working capital amounted to $70.1 million.

Typically during periods of revenue growth, changes in accounts receivable and inventories represent a use
of cash as we incur costs and expend cash in advance of receiving cash from our customers. Similarly, during
periods of declining revenue, changes in accounts receivable and inventories represent a source of cash as
inventory purchases decline and revenue from prior periods is collected.

Operating activities used $4.6 million in 2000. Cash provided by operating activities in 2001 and 2002 was
$23.0 million and $1.3 million, respectively. The use of cash in operating activities during 2000 was primarily
the result of having to fund an increase in accounts receivable and an increase in inventories, offset by net
income. Net cash provided by operating activities in 2001 was primarily due to net income combined with a
decrease in accounts receivable. The net cash provided by operating activities during 2002 was primarily a result
of increases in deferred revenue of $3.9 million, accrued liabilities of $2.0 million, profit before depreciation,
amortization and the write-off of IPRD of $3.7 million, partially offset by an increase in inventories of $6.2
million and an increase in accounts receivable of $0.9 million.

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.4 million, $2.4 million and $56.4 million in 2000, 2001 and
2002. Capital expenditures for 2000 were primarily used for the purchase and installation of enterprise resource
planning software, computer equipment necessary for our operations and costs associated with renovations to our
corporate headquarters. Capital expenditures for 2001 were primarily used for renovations to our corporate
facility and upgrades to existing computer systems. Net cash used in investing activities for 2002 included the
acquisition of YMG, net of cash acquired, of $25.1 million, purchases of short-term investments of $30.8 million
and capital expenditures of $0.6 million. Capital expenditures over the next twelve months are expected to be
approximately $1.5 million.*

Net cash provided by financing activities was $0.7 million, $44.4 million and $2.5 million in 2000, 2001
and 2002. In 2000, net cash provided by financing activities equaled the cash proceeds received by us when our
employees exercised stock options and participated in the employee stock purchase plan. In February 2001, we
completed the follow-on public offering of 1,000,000 shares of our common stock at $45.00 per share. Net
proceeds to us after the underwriting discount and other fees amounted to $42.0 million. In addition, we received
cash proceeds of $2.3 million from stock option exercises and participation in our employee stock purchase plan,
Net cash provided by financing activities in 2002 was a result of proceeds received from sales of shares,
including sales of shares through employee stock plans and proceeds received from a director of the Company in
connection with his sale of the Company’s stock.

Qur future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the timing and amount of our
revenues and our investment decisions, which will affect our ability to generate additional cash. We believe that
our existing cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash
requirements for working capital, capital expenditures, and research and development activities for the
foreseeable future.* Thereafter, if cash generated from operations and financing activities is insufficient to satisfy
our working capital requirements, we may seek additional funding through bank borrowings, sales of securities
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or other means. There can be no assurance that we will be able to raise any such capital on terms acceptable to us
or at all.

Our significant commitments consist of operating leases. We lease our manufacturing, service and sales
facilities and certain equipment under operating leases that expire through 2009. The total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2002 amounted to $1,024, $958, $670, $429
and $429 for the years 2003 to 2007, respectively.

Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon
our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We review the accounting policies we use in reporting our
financial results on a regular basis. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to
accounts receivable, inventories, intangible assets, income taxes and warranty obligations. We base our estimates
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Results may differ from these estimates due to actual
outcomes being different from those on which we based our assumptions. These estimates and judgments are
reviewed by management on an ongoing basis, and by the Audit Committee at the end of each quarter prior to the
public release of our financial results. We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. Effective January 1, 2000, we changed our method of accounting for revenue
recognition to comply with SAB 101. Revenue is recognized upon shipment provided that there is persuasive
evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the
related receivable is reasonably assured. Certain sales of our products are sold and accounted for as multiple
element arrangements, consisting of the sale of the product and installation. We generally recognize revenue
upon delivery of the product, which is prior to installation, as the actions required to perform the installation are
deemed to be perfunctory. Installation is deemed to be perfunctory based on our sales and installation history for
similar products and customers and the fact that other vendors can and have performed the installation. When
customer acceptance is subjective and not obtained prior to shipment, we defer a portion of the product revenue
until such time as positive affirmation of acceptance has been obtained from the customer. Customer acceptance
is generally based on our products meeting published performance specifications. The amount of revenue
allocated to the shipment of products is done on a residual method basis. Under this method, the total
arrangement value is allocated first to undelivered contract elements, based on their fair values, with the
remainder being allocated to product revenue. The fair value of installation services is based upon billable hourly
rates and the estimated time to complete the service. Revenue related to undelivered installation services is
deferred until such time as installation is completed at the customer’s site.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our customers to make required payments. We specifically analyze accounts
receivable and analyze historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current
economic trends and changes in our customer payment terms when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for
doubtful accounts. If the financial condition of our customers was to deteriorate, resuiting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments or our assumptions are otherwise incorrect, additional allowances may be
required.

Excess and Obsolete Inventory. We write down our excess and obsolete inventory equal to the difference
between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future product life-
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cycles, product demand and market conditions. If actual product life-cycles, product demand and market
conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be
required.

Long-Lived Assets and Acquired Intangible Assets. The Company periodically reviews long-lived assets,
other than goodwill, for impairment whenever changes in events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Goodwill, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, is reviewed for
possible impairment at least annually during the fourth quarter for each year. A review of goodwill may be
initiated prior to conducting the annual analysis if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of goodwill may be impaired. Assumptions and estimates used in the determination of impairment losses,
such as future cash flows and disposition costs, may affect the carrying value of long-lived assets and the
impairment of such long-lived assets, if any, could have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

Warranties. We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized.
While we engage in product quality programs and processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product
failure rates, material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actnal
product failure rates, material usage or service delivery costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated
warranty liability would be required.

Accounting for Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements,
we are required to estimate our actual current tax exposure together with our temporary differences resulting
from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These temporary differences result in deferred
tax assets, which are included within our consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that our
deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not
likely, we must establish a valuation allowance. Significant management judgment is required in determining our
provision for income taxes, our deferred tax assets and any valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax
assets. At December 31, 2002, we had no valuation allowance established against our deferred tax assets. The
valuation allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income by jurisdiction in which we operate and the
period over which our deferred taxes will be recoverable. In the event that actual results differ from these
estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods, we may need to establish a valuation allowance, which
could materially impact our financial position and results of operations.

Empac&' of Recent Accounting Proncuncements

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002). SFAS No. 143 addresses accounting and reporting for obligations
associated with the retirement of tangible long lived assets and retirement of assets. We are currently evaluating
the impact of SFAS No. 143, but do not expect that our adoption on January 1, 2003 will have a material effect
on our financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be
recognized when the liability is incurred. We are required to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 146 effective for
exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 will impact the types
and timing costs associated with any future exit activities of which no material activities are currently planned.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others, an interpretation of
FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and a rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34.” This Interpretation
elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim annual financial statements about its
obligations under guarantees issued. The Interpretation also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at
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inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken. The initial recognition and
measurement provisions of the Interpretation are applicable to guarantees issued or modified after December 31,
2002 and are not expected to have a material effect on our financial statements. The disclosure requirements are
effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” This Statement amends SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change
to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. We expect to continue to account
for stock options under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. In addition, this Statement amends the
disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements. Certain of the disclosure modifications are required for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002
and are included in the notes to our consolidated financial statements.

Audit Committee Approval of Non-Audit Services

Section 10A(1)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as added by Section 202 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, requires disclosure of the approval of our Audit Committee of non-audit services to be performed by
our external auditor. The Audit Committee approved engagements of KPMG LLP, our external auditor, for the
following non-audit services: (1) tax services; (2) 401(k) audit; and (3) acquisition related due diligence.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily from our investments in certain available-for-sale
securities. Our available-for-sale securities consist primarily of fixed income investments (U.S. Treasury and
Agency securities and corporate bonds). We continually monitor our exposure to changes in interest rates and
credit ratings of issuers from our available-for-sale securities. Accordingly, we believe that the effects of changes
in interest rates and credit ratings of issuers are limited and would not have a material impact on our financial
condition or results of operations. However, it is possible that we are at risk if interest rates or credit ratings of
issuers change in an unfavorable direction. The magnitude of any gain or loss will be a function of the difference
between the fixed rate of the financial instrument and the market rate and our financial condition and results of
operations could be materially affected.

Foreign Currency Risk

We do not use foreign currency forward exchange contracts or purchased currency options to hedge local
currency cash flows or for trading purposes. All sales arrangements with international customers are
denominated in U.S. dollars. We have branch operations in Taiwan, Singapore, China and Korea and a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Europe, which are subject to currency fluctuations. These foreign branches are limited in
their operations and level of investment so that the risk of currency fluctuations is not expected to be material.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements required by this item are set forth on the pages indicated at Item 15(a).

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

A change in accountants was previously reported on a Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 31, 2002.
In the prior year a change in accountants was reported on a Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Apri} 25, 2001
as amended by Form 8-K/A filed on May 18, 2001.
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PART HiI

Certain information required by Part I is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K because the
Registrant will file a definitive proxy statement within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the fiscal
year pursuant to Regulation 14A (the “Proxy Statement”) for its Annual Meeting of Stockholders currently
scheduled for May 21, 2003, and the information included in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item with respect to directors and executive officers is incorporated by
reference to the Proxy Statement. Information regarding compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement.

Item B1. Executive Compensation
The information required by this Item with respect to the compensation of our executive officers is
incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

None.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer, after evaluating our “disclosure controls and
procedures” (as defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-
14(c)) as of a date (the “Evaluation Date”) within 90 days before the filing date of this Annual Report on Form
10-K, have concluded that as of the Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to
ensure that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i)
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange
Commission rules and forms, and (ii) accumulated and communicated to management, including the chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

The Company’s management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, does not
expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all error and all fraud. Because of inherent
limitations in any system of disclosure controls and procedures, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all instances of error or fraud, if any, within the Company may be detected.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls.

Subsequent to the Evaluation Date, there were no significant changes in our internal controls or in other
factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including any
corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
1. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement information required by this
Item are included on pages F-1 through F-24 of this report. The Reports of Independent Public
Accounts appear on pages F-2 through F-4 of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedule

See Index to financial statements on page F-1 of this report.

3. Exhibits
(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On October 9, 2002, Rudolph filed a Current Report on Form 8-X to disclose the closing of its
acquisition of ISOA, Inc. that occurred on September 25, 2002.

On November 14, 2002, Rudolph filed a Current Report on Form 8-K which contained Certifications
that were furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

{c) The following is a list of exhibits. Where so indicated, exhibits, which were previously filed, are
incorporated by reference.

Exhibit
No. Description
31 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

(3.1(b)) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-
86871 filed on September 9, 1999).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3.2(b)) to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed
on September 9, 1999).

10.1+ License Agreement, dated June 28, 1995, between the Registrant and Brown University Research
Foundation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.1) to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9, 1999).

10.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.3) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on
September 9, 1999).

10.3 Amended 1996 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to Registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 14, 2001).

10.4 Form of 1999 Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.4) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on
September 9, 1999).

10.5 Form of 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.5) to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed
on September 9, 1999).
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10.6

10.7

10.8

109

10.10

10.11

21.1
23.1
23.2
23.3
99.1

Management Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2000, by and between Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and
Paul F. MicLaughlin (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s quarterly
report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 3, 2000).

Management Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2000, by and between Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and
Robert Loiterman (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q, filed on November 3, 2000).

Management Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2000 by and between Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and
Steven R. Roth (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant’s quarterly report on
Form 10-Q, filed on November 3, 2000).

Registration Agreement, dated June 14, 1996 by and among the Registrant, 11, L.L.C., Riverside
Rudolph, L.L.C., Dr. Richard F. Spanier, Paul F. McLaughlin (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10.9) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No.
333-86871), filed on September 9, 1999).

Stockholders Agreement, dated June 14, 1996 by and among the Registrant, Administration of Florida,
Liberty Partners Holdings 11, L.1..C., Riverside Dr. Richard F. Spanier, Paul McLaughlin, Dale
Moorman, Thomas Cooper and (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.10) to the
Registrant’s Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9, 1999.

Agreement and Plan of Merger among Rudolph Technologies, Inc., Oasis Acquisition, Inc., ISOA, Inc.
and certain shareholders of ISOA, Inc. dated July 22, 2002 (incorporated by reference to an exhibit
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-X as filed with the Commission on October 9, 2002).

Subsidiaries.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants.
Notice regarding consent of Arthur Andersen LLP.

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Accountants.

Letter to Commission Pursuant to Temporary Note 37T.

+  Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to portions of this exhibit.
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Report of Independent Accountants

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.:

We have audited the 2002 consolidated financial statements of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries
as listed in the accompanying index. In connection with our audit of the 2002 consolidated financial statements,
we also have audited the 2002 financial statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index. These
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial
statement scheclule based on our audit. The 2001 consolidated financial statements and 2001 financial statement
schedule of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as listed in the accompanying index were audited by
other auditors who have ceased operations. Those auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule in their report dated January 25, 2002.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2002 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related 2002 financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Short Hills, New Jersey
January 29, 2003




Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. (a Delaware
corporation) and subsidiary as of December 31, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements and the schedule referred
to below are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2001, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The schedule listed under Item 14 (a)2 is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and is not a basic part of the financial statements. This schedule for the year ended
December 31, 2001 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all material respects the financial data required to be set forth
therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Roseland, New Jersey
January 25, 2002

This is a copy of the audit report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP (“Andersen”) in connection with our
filing on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001. This audit report has not been reissued by Andersen,
nor has Andersen consented to its inclusion, in connection with this filing on Form 10-K. See exhibit 23.2 for

further discussion.




Report of Independent Accountants

To the Stockhclders and Board of Directors
of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated statements of income, of cash flows and of changes in stockholders’ equity
for the year ended December 31, 2000 present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash
flows of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiary for the year ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the 2000
financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index appearing under Item 14(a)(2), presents fairly, in
all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2B to the consolidated financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2000
the Company changed its method of recognizing revenue.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECCOPERS LLP

Florham Park, New Jersey
January 26, 2001




RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,
2001 2802
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashand cashequivalents .. ........ ..ottt $ 94,642 $ 42,047
Short-term INVeStMENtS . ... ... .t i e e — 31,223
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $328 in 2001 and $250in2002 ........... 13,523 16,142
IVENIOTIES & . o vttt et et e e e 22,695 30,488
INCOME taxXes TECEIVADIE . ... o\ttt et ettt e e e 917 1,336
Deferred INCOME tAXES . .. o\ttt it i e et e e e e 1,864 1,286
Prepaid expenses and other CUIrent assets ................oveiineiinnniinnn.. 654 1,411
Total CUITENT ASSEIS . . v\ vttt ettt e e ettt e 134,295 123,933
Property, plant and equipment, net .. ......... ... i 5,221 7,454
GoodWill ..o e 413 13,209
Identifiable intangible assets, net ... ... .. ... i e s 1,768 11,256
Deferred INCOmME taXES . . .ottt e e e e 5,790 5,299
L0 14 1) g 11 O 311 812
Total assets ........ e $147,798 $161,963
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... ... $ 78 § 2,587
Accrued liabilities:
COMUIUSSIONS &+ & o ettt ettt e ettt e e et e e e 180 111
Payroll and related €XPenses ... ...t i e 727 2,684
WAITANLY . .ottt et et e ettt e et e e 972 1,120
Income taxes payable . ........ . ... e — 1,157
Deferredrevenue . ..........cov s, e 1,489 5,475
Other current Habilities .. ... .. ottt i i e i e 1,491 4,748
Total current liabilities ... ... ... i i i e e 5,648 17,882

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and

outstanding at December 31,2001 and 2002 ...... ... ... ... — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 16,136,003 and
16,330,840 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2002,
respectively ........ e 16 16
Additional paid-incapital ...... ... ... e 134,315 137,668
Accumulated other comprehensiveloss ............ ... .. i (304) (295)
Retained earnings .. ..........viiitinitnie 8,123 6,692
Total stockholders’ equity .. ... i 142,150 144,081
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ..............ooirevreenrnnnn.. $147,798 $161,963

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (1.OSS)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
REVENUES ..ottt ittt ettt et e $ 88,107 $ 79398 $ 57,445
Costofrevenues ...t it e e e e 41,854 39,798 33,576
Gross Profit . ..ottt it it e e 46,253 39,600 23,869
Operating expenses:
Research and development ............... ... ... ... .... 2022 11,625 11,828
In-process research and development ............:........ — —_ 3,560
Selling, general and administrative .. ..................... 14,463 12,171 11,025
AMOTIZAHON . .\t i ittt e e 339 339 412
Total operating expenses .. ...........coviiinunnnnn. 23,824 24,135 26,765
Operating income (loss) .......... e e e 22,429 15,465 (2,896)
Interest income and other,net . .............c i, 2,174 2,774 2,050
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes and
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. .... 24,603 18,239 (846)
Provision (benefit) forincome taxes . ..........cvurinvvnen.... (431) 6,499 585
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting prinCiple ........... ..o, 25,034 11,740 (1,431)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (net of tax of
322 T 1,458 — —
Net income (JOS5) oo v ettt ittt et i $ 23576 $ 11,740 S (1,431)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in :
accounting principle ......... ... .. oo, $ 169 $ 074 $ (0.09)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle . . ... ... (0.0%) — —
Netincome (I0SS) .. v ittt ettt $ 1.60 $ 074 $ (0.09)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle ......... ... ... .. $ 158 $ 071 $ (0.09)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle . . ... ... (0.09) — —
Netincome (10SS) ..ottt $ 149 $ 071 $ (0.09)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
BaSIC .. e 14,773,295 15,899,933 16,215,237
Diluted ......................... e 15,805,188 16,531,461 16,215,237

The accompanying notes-are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2602
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated Retained

C Stock Additional Other Earnings
Ommon Stoc Paid-in Comprehensive (Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Loss Deficit) Total Income (L.0sS)

Balance at December 31,1999 ... 14,684,706 $ 15 $ 85,025 $237) $(27,193) § 57,610
Proceeds from sales of shares
through employee stock

plans . ................. 187,179 — 672 — — 672
Netincome ............... — — — — 23,576 23,576 $23,576
Tax benefit of exercise of

employee stock options . .. —_ — 1,688 — — 1,688
Currency translation . ....... — —_— — (38) — (38) (38)
Comprehensive income . . ... $23,538

Balance at December 31, 2000 ... 14,871,885 15 87,385 (275) (3,617) 83,508

Issuance of common stock,

net of expenses .......... 1,000,000 1 42,031 — — 42,032
Proceeds from sales of shares )

through employee stock

plans . ................. 264,118 — 2,364 — —_ 2,364
Netincome ............... — — — — 11,740 11,740  $11,740
Tax benefit of exercise of :

employee stock options . .. — — 2,535 — — 2,535
Currency translation . ... .... — — — (29) — (29) (29)
Comprehensive income . .. .. $11,711

Balance at December 31, 2001 ... 16,136,003 16 134,315 (304) 8,123 142,150

Proceeds from sales of shares

through employee stock

plansandother .......... 194,837 — 2,468 — — 2,468
Netloss .........coovvn.s — —_ — — (1,431) (1,431)  $(1,431)
Tax benefit of exercise of

employee stock options . .. — — 885 — — 885
Currency transiation . .. ..... — —_ — “17) —_— 417) 417)
Unrealized gain on

investments, net of income :

tax expense of $132 . ... .. — — — 426 — 426 426
Comprehensive loss ........ $(1,422)
Balance at December 31,

2002 ... 16,330,840 $ 16 $137,668 $(295) $ 6,692 $144,081

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDCLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:
Netincome (JoSS) . ..ottt e e e $ 23,576 $11,740 $ (1,431)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash and cash equivalents

provided by (used in) operating activities:

AMOTHZALON . . .ottt et e ettt et et et e e 3390 339 412
In-process research and development ... ........ ... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. —_ — 3,500
DePreciation . . .. oo\ttt e e 661 1,027 1,233
Tax benefit for sale of shares through employee stock plans ................ 1,688 2,535 885
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accounts . ........................... 143 (115) 78)
‘Deferred INCOME taXeS . .. ..o ottt e (7,150) 1,308 252
Decrease (increase) in assets, net of acquired business:
Accountsreceivable ... ... (17,815) 13,709 (860)
Income taxes receivable ........... ... (1,349) 432 (419)
INVentories . ... e e (12,400) 1,067 (6,215)
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ............ ... .. . oo, (46) 221y  (1,497)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities, net of acquired business:
Accountspayable .. ... ... 1,347 (2,726) 135
Accrued abilities . ... ... ... . e 1,178  (1,659) 1,996
Income taxes payable . . ... ... . e — — 1,157
Deferred revenue . ... ... it e 4,345  (3,510) 3,986
Other current liabilities .. ....... ... ... . i e 857 (1,468) (1,713)
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in) operating
ACHVIES . . oo e (4,626) 22,958 1,343
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of business, net of cash acquired .......................... — —_ (25,069)
Purchases of short-term investments .. ..............c.oviiniennn .. — — (30,797)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ......................... (1,388) (2,431) (618)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment .............. 16 —_ —
Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities .......... (1,372) (2,431) (56,484)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of expenses ................. — 42,032 —
Proceeds from sales of shares through employee stock plans and other . . .. 672 2,364 2,468
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by financing activities .. . ... 672 44,396 2,468
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ............... (14) a7 78
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ...................... (5,340) 64,906 (52,595)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . ... ..................... 35076 29,736 94,642
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period .. ............................ $ 29,736 $94,642 $ 42,047

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Income taxes ... ... $ 5454 $ 2,030 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDOLPH TECHNCLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Organization and Nature of Operations:

Rudolph Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) designs, develops, manufactures and supports high-
performance process control equipment used in semiconductor device manufacturing. The Company has branch
sales and service offices in China, Korea, Taiwan and Singapore and a wholly-owned sales and service
subsidiary in Europe. The Company operates in a single segment and supports a wide variety of applications in
the areas of diffusion, etch, lithography, CVD, PVD, and CMP.

On September 25, 2002, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of ISOA, Inc., a Texas
corporation (ISOA), through a merger of Qasis Acquisition, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
with and into ISOA, with ISOA as the surviving corporation, renamed Yield Metrology Group (YMG). YMG
had licensed its technology for use in the semiconductor industry and recently began transitioning to a
semiconductor capital equipment supplier. YMG’s core technologies are knowledge-based algorithms used in
wafer macro-defect detection and classification. The purchase consideration for YMG, including direct
acquisition costs, was $25.2 million in cash. The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations (See Note 3).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
A. Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements reflect the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

B. Revenue Recognition and Change in Accounting Principle

Effective January 1, 2000, the Company changed its method of accounting for revenue recognition to
comply with Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements (SAB 101). Revenue is now recognized upon shipment provided that there is persuasive
evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the
related receivable is reasonably assured. Certain sales of the Company’s products are sold and accounted for as
multiple element arrangements, consisting of the sale of the product and installation. The Company generally
recognizes revenue upon delivery of the product, which is prior to installation, as the actions required to perform
the installation are deemed to be perfunctory. Installation is deemed to be perfunctory based on the Company’s
sales and installation history for similar products and customers and the fact that other vendors can and have
performed the installation. When customer acceptance is subjective and not obtained prior to shipment, the
Company defers a portion of the product revenue until such time as positive affirmation of acceptance has been
obtained from the customer. Customer acceptance is generally based on the Company’s products meeting
published performance specifications. The amount of revenue allocated to the shipment of products is done on a
residual method basis. Under this method, the total arrangement value is allocated first to undelivered contract
elements, based on their fair values, with the remainder being allocated to product revenue. The fair value of
installation services is based upon billable hourly rates and the estimated time to complete the service. Revenue
related to undelivered installation services is deferred until such time as installation is completed at the
customer’s site. Previously, the Company had recognized revenue upon shipment of equipment to customers,
which usually preceded installation and final customer acceptance, provided final customer acceptance and
collection of the related receivable were probable. The effect of the change was to decrease revenue by $2.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2000.
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Revenues from paits sales are recognized at the time of shipment. Revenue from service contracts is
recognized ratably over the period of the contract. A provision for the estimated cost of fulfilling warranty
obligations is recorded at the time the related revenue is recognized.

Sales contracts with distributors contain fixed prices, current payment terms and are not subject to
distributor’s resale or any other contingencies. Accordingly, sales of finished products to distributors are
recognized as revenue at the time of shipment. Distributors do not maintain inventory of our products, other than
a small quantity of spare parts for warranty and maintenance purposes.

C. Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates made by
management include allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory obsolescence, recoverability and useful lives of
property, plant and equipment, and identifiable intangible assets, recaverability of goodwill, recoverability of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for product warranty. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three
months or less when purchased.

E. Allowance For Doubtful Accounts:

The Company evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. In the
cases where the Company is aware of circumstances that may impair a specific cusiomer’s ability to meet its
financial obligation the Company records a specific allowance against amounts due, and thereby reduces the net
recognized receivable to the amount management reasonably believes will be collected. For all other customers,
the Company recognizes allowances for doubtful accounts based on the length of time the receivables are
outstanding, industry and geographic concentrations, the current business environment and historical experience.

F. Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Demonstration units, which are
available for sale, are stated at their manufacturing costs and reserves are recorded to adjust the demonstration
units to their net realizable value.

G. Property, Plant and Equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which are thirty years for buildings,
seven years for machinery and equipment and furnitures and fixtures, and three years for computer equipment.
Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the lesser of the lease term or the
estimated useful life of the related asset. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred and major
renewals and betterments are capitalized.
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H. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and identifiable acquired intangible assets with
definite useful lives, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment
charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset,
which is generally based on discounted cash flows.

I Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets:

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations”, and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”. SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations
completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 also specifies the criteria that intangible assets acquired in a
purchase method business combination must meet to be recognized and reported apart from goodwill. SFAS No.
142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead
they will be tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142. SFAS
No. 142 also requires that intangible assets with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated
useful lives to their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”

The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 141 for acquisitions initiated after June 30, 2001,
and SFAS No. 142 effective Janvary 1, 2002. In connection therewith, the Company determined that it has one
reporting unit. Goodwill acquired in business combinations completed before July 1, 2001 has been amortized
through December 31, 2001. Effective January 1, 2002, as part of the adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company is
no longer amortizing goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires that the Company perform an assessment of whether
there is an indication that goodwill is impaired based on the provisions of SFAS No. 142. To the extent an
indication exists that the goodwill may be impaired, the Company must measure the impairment loss, if any.
Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill impairment is deemed to exist if the net book value of a reporting unit exceeds
its estimated fair value. The Company performed an assessment to determine whether goodwill was impaired as
of January 1, 2002, the date of adoption, and as of December 31, 2002, and determined that there was no
impairment to its goodwill balance at these dates. The Company will test for impairment at December 31 each
year. Amortization expense related to goodwill was immaterial for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001.

J. Concentration of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist
primarily of accounts receivable and cash. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and generally does not require collateral for sales on credit. The Company maintains reserves for potential credit
losses. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with higher credit quality financial institutions and
monitors the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution.

K. Warranties:

The Company generally provides a warranty on its products for a period of twelve to fifieen months against
defects in material and workmanship. Warranty expense amounted to $1,349, $915 and $1,225 for the years

F-11




RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The Company has established reserves of $972 and
$1,120 at Deceraber 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, for anticipated future warranty costs.

L. Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability approach for deferred taxes which
requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events
that have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements or tax returns. A valuation
allowance is recorded to reduce a deferred tax asset to that portion which more likely than not will be realized.
Additionally, tax assets are separated into current and non-current amounts based on the classification of the
related assets for financial reporting purposes.

M. Translation of Foreign Currencies:

The Company has foreign branches in China, Korea, Taiwan and Singapore, and a wholly-owned subsidiary
in Europe which use their local currency as their functional currency. Assets and liabilities are translated at
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and income and expense accounts and cash flow items are
translated at average exchange rates during the period. Resulting translation adjustments are recorded directly as
a separate component of stockholders” equity under the caption, “Accumulated other comprehensive loss.”
Foreign exchange rate gains and losses included in operating results are not material for all periods presented.

N. Stock-based Compensation:

At December 31, 2002, the Company has stock-based employee compensation plans which are described
more fully in Note 9. The Company accounts for its stock option plans in accordance with the provisions of
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
interpretations. As such, compensation expense is recorded on the date of grant only if the current market price of
the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net
income (loss), as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant. The Company has adopted the disclosure standards of SFAS No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” which requires the Company to provide pro forma net
income and pro forma earnings per share disclosures for employee stock option grants made in 1995 and future
years as if the fair-value-based method of accounting for stock options as defined in SFAS No. 123 had been
applied. The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and per share amounts if the Company had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation:

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
Net income (loss), asreported . ............... e $23,576 $11,740 $(1,431)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method, net of related income tax benefits ... 1,697 3,345 4,376

Pro forma net income (10S8) ... vvvvtrt it $21,879 $ 8,395 $(5.807)
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic—asreported ................0iii.... e $ 160 $ 074 $ (0.09)

Basic—proforma ...........ciiiiiiiii $ 149 $ 053 $ (0.36)

Diluted—asreported . . ........oviii e $ 149 $ 071 $ (0.09)

Diluted—proforma............... S $ 140 $ 051 $ (0.36)
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The fair value of each stock option granted during the year is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Employee Stock Options 2000 2001 2002
Expected life (years) .........c.coiuiriiin i 5.0 5.0 5.0
Expected volatility . ........c i 109.0% 95.0% 85.0%
Expected dividend yield .............. JP 0.0% 00% 0.0%
Risk-free interestrate ............coiiuiniieiinneiiineiianann.. 52% 35% 3.8%
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year. ......... $28.39 $23.16 $9.24
Employee Stock Purchase Plan shares 2000 2001 2602
Expected life (years) .........ooo i 0.5 05 051020
Expected volatility ........ ... . e 109.0% 95.0% 85.0%
Expected dividend yield ........ .. ... . i 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-freeinterestrate .. ... ... .. i 52% 3.5% 1.7%
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ....... $24.50 $11.40 $9.84

0. Software Development Costs:

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for
Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased or Marketed.” SFAS No. 86 requires that certain software
product development costs incurred after technological feasibility has been established, be capitalized and
amortized, commencing upon the general release of the software product to the Company’s customers, over the
economic life of the software product. Annual amortization of capitalized costs is computed using the greater of:
(1) the ratio of current gross revenues for the software product over the total of current and anticipated future
gross revenues for the software product or (ii) the straight-line basis. Software product development costs
incurred prior to the product reaching technological feasibility are expensed as incurred and included in research
and development costs. Capitalized costs to date have been immaterial and, accordingly, SFAS No. 86 has no
significant impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

P. Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates fair value due to their short maturities.

Q. Risks Inherent in the Business:

The Company sells its products to the semiconductor device industry and believes that changes in any of the
following areas could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or
cash flows: advances and trends in new technologies and industry standards; competitive pressures in the form of
new products or price reductions on current products; changes in product mix; changes in the overall demand for
products and services offered by the Company; changes in customer relationships; litigation or claims against the
Company based on intellectual property, patent, product, regulatory or other factors; risks associated with
changes in domestic and international economic and/or political conditions or regulations; dependency on
suppliers and availability of necessary product components and the Company’s ability to attract and retain
employees necessary to support its growth.
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R.  Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002). SFAS No. 143 addresses accounting and reporting for obligations
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and retirement of assets. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 143, but does not expect that its adoption on January 1, 2003 will have a
material effect on its financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be
recognized when the liability is incurred. The Company is required to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 146
effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 will
impact the types and timing of costs associated with any future exit activities.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others, an interpretation of
FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and a rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34.” This Interpretation
elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim annual financial statements about its
obligations under guarantees issued. The Interpretation also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at
inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken. The initial recognition and
measurement provisions of the Interpretation are applicable to guarantees issued or modified after December 31,
2002 and are not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements. The disclosure
requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” This Statement amends SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change
to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. The Company expects to
continue to account for stock options under APB Opinjon No. 25. In addition, this Statement amends the
disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements. Certain of the disclosure modifications are required for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002
and are included in the notes to these consolidated financial statements.

3. Business Combinations:

On September 25, 2002, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of ISOA, Inc., a Texas
corporation (ISOA), through a merger of Oasis Acquisition, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
with and into ISOA, with ISOA as the surviving corporation, renamed Yield Metrology Group (YMG). YMG is a
spin-off from Texas Tech University’s International Center for Informatics Research. Over the past 16 years,
YMG has licensed its technology for use in the semiconductor industry and recently began transitioning to a
semiconductor capital equipment supplier. YMG’s core technologies are knowledge-based algorithms used in
wafer macro-defect detection and classification. Customers in Asia, Europe and the U.S. are currently using its
recently introduced WaferView family of tools. The Company believes YMG’s technology will significantly
expand its product offering and provide additional value to our customers. YMG will continue to maintain its
offices in Richardson, Texas. The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting for
business combinations and, accordingly, the results of operations of YMG have been included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.
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The purchase consideration for YMG, including direct acquisition costs, was $25,235 in cash. The purchase
price has been allocated to the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their respective fair market

values.

The allocation of the purchase consideration to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed follows:

Cash .. e $ 166
Accountsreceivable ... ... e e 1,623
IVenEOmIES . . et e e 1,413
Property, plant and eqUIpmMent ... ....... ... it 2,838
OHher BS80S . .ottt it e e e e 445
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................ ... ... .. .. ... (1,684)
Deferred taxes . ... o e (817)
Other Habilities . .. ... e (4,945)
Identifiable intangible assets ........... .. e 13,400
GoodwWill . ..o e e 12,796
$25,235

The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed was
allocated to goodwill. The total goodwill of $12,796, none of which is deductible for tax purposes, is not being
amortized in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Intangible Assets.” All remaining and future acquired goodwill will be subject to an impairment test each year
using a fair-value-based approach pursuant to SFAS No. 142. Identifiable intangible assets include patented
technology and in-process research and development (IPRD). The Company is amortizing the patented
technology of approximately $9,900 on a straight-line basis over its estimated remaining useful life of 16 years.
The amount allocated to IPRD of $3,500 is related to automated defect inspection technology to be used in stand
alone and integrated metrology equipment. Such amount was charged to expense at the acquisition date as the
IPRD had not reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use.

The Company used the income approach to estimate the fair value of the developed technology and IPRD.
The income approach measures the value of an asset by the present value of its future economic benefits. Value
indications are developed in this technique by discounting expected cash flows to their present value at a rate of
return that incorporates the risk-free rate for the use of funds, the expected rate of inflation and risks associated
with the asset. The discount rate selected is generally based on rates of return available from alternative
investments of similar type and risk as of September 25, 2002. The income approach was deemed to be an
appropriate method of valuation for these assets, since the income approach focuses on the ability of the assets to
generate future earnings.
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The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information presents the combined results of
operations of the Company and YMG as if the acquisition occurred at the beginning of the periods presented,
after giving effect to certain adjustments, including amortization expense. Due to the non-recurring nature of the
$3,500 IPRD charge, this amount has not been included in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial
information. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information does not necessarily reflect the results
of operations that would have occurred had the acquisition been completed as of the dates indicated or of the
results that may be obtained in the future (in thousands except per share information).

Year Ended Becember 31,
2001 2002
(Unaudited)
REVEIUES o vt ittt e et e e e e e $83,565 $63,686
Netincome ............oveuiinen... e $11,083 $ 1,258
Earnings per share:
BasiC ... o e $ 0.70 $ 0.08
Diluted . ..o $ 0.66 $ 0.08

4, Short-Term Investments:

The Company has evaluated its investment policies consistent with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” and determined that all of its investment securities are to be
classified as available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with the unrealized gains
and losses reported in stockholders’ equity under the caption “Accumulated other comprehensive loss.” Realized
gains and losses, interest and dividends on available-for-sale securities are included in interest income and other,
net. Net gains and losses of $169 are included in the consolidated statements of income (loss) for 2002. Gross
unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities were $562 and gross unrealized losses on available-for-sale
securities were $4 as of December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002, these short-term investments are categorized as follows:

Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cest Helding Gains Holding Losses Value

Treasury notes and obligations of U.S. Government
AENCIES ..ttt vttt s $23,793 $276 $— $24,069
Asset-backed securities . ............ . ... . ... ..., 1,119 41 — 1,160
Corporatebonds ....... ... 3,722 170 ) 3,890
Mortgage-backed securities ....................... 2,031 75 2) 2,104
Total short-term investments . ................. $30,665 $562 $ @ $31,223

The estimated fair value of short-term investments classified by the maturity date listed on the security,
regardless of the consolidated balance sheet classification, is as follows at December 31, 2002:

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Due within ON€ Year . . ... ..ottt e e e e $ 831 §$§ 842
Due after one through five years ....... ... .. ... .. . i 24,612 24,902
Due after five throughtenyears ........... ... i 3,628 3,829
Due after ten YEars . . .. ..ottt e 1,594 1,650
Total short-term investments . ..., $30,665 $31,223
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5. ldentifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill:

Effective July 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 141, which requires all business combinations be
accounted for using the purchase method. Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, which
eliminated the requirement to amortize goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets. The following information

provides the required disclosures of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142:

Identifiable intangible assets:

Identifiable intangible assets as of December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Weighted Average Gross Carrying Accumulated

Useful Life Amount Amertization Net
Purchased technology .......... 12 years $22,731 $21,220 % 1,511
Patented technology (Note 3) .... 16 years 9,900 155 9,745
Total ................... $32,631 $21,375  $11,256

Intangible asset amortization expense amounted to $258, $258 and $412 for the years ended December 31,
2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Assuming no change in the gross carrying value of identifiable intangible

assets, the estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years is $876.

Goodwill:

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:

Balance as of December 31,2000 .......... .. . i,
Goodwill amortization . ...ttt i e e

Balance as of December 31,2001 ......... ... i
Goodwill acquired (Note 3) . ... ... oot i

Balance as of December 31,2002 ... ... . i

6. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment, net is comprised of the following:

Landandbuilding ....... .. ... . .
Machinery and equipment ......... ... .. i
Fumiture and fixtures . . ......... ... i i i
Computer 8qUIPIMENT . .. ..ottt ettt e
Leasehold improvements ... ................... e

Accumulated depreciation ............. ...

Property, plant and equipment,net .......... ... . ooi ...

Depreciation expense amounted to $661, $1,027 and $1,233 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001,

and 2002, respectively.
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7. Imventories:

Inventories are comprised of the following:

December 31,
2001 2002
Materials .. ... i e e e e $15,048 $16,530
WOTK-IN-PIOCESS . oo vt ittt et e ettt i 5637 11,622
Finished goods . ...t 2,010 2,336
Total INVENEOTIES . .. oot ittt et et e e e e $22,695 $30,488

The Company has established reserves of $1,426 and $1,697 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, for slow
moving and obsolete inventory.

8. Commitments and Contingencies:

The Company rents space for its manufacturing and service operations and sales offices. Total rent expense
for these facilities amounted to $797, $1,169 and $1,126 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.

The Company also leases certain equipment pursuant to operating leases, which expire through 2006. Rent
expense related to these leases amounted to $52, $169 and $80 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and
2002, respectively.

Total future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2002
amounted to $1,024, $958, $670, $429 and $429 for the years 2003 to 2007, respectively.

Under various licensing agreements, the Company is obligated to pay royalties based on net sales of
products sold. There are no minimum annual royalty payments. Royalty expense amounted to $3,285, $2,924 and
$1,763 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

9. Employee Benefit and Stock Option Plans:

In 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Cption Plan (the “Option Plan™). Under the Option Plan, the
Company was authorized to grant options to purchase up to 1,069,902 shares of common stock. All of the
outstanding options became 100% vested upon the initial public offering of the Company on November 12, 1999.
As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there were no shares of common stock reserved for future grants under the
Option Plan.

The Company established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) effective August 31, 1999. Under
the terms of the ESPP, eligible employees may have up to 15% of eligible compensation deducted from their pay
and applied to the purchase of shares of Common Stock. The price the employee must pay for each share of stock
will be 85% of the lower of the fair market value of the Common Stock at the beginning of the twenty four
month offering period or at the end of the applicable six month purchase period. The ESPP qualifies as a non-
compensatory plan under section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there
were 520,099 and 779,413 shares available for issuance under the ESPP, respectively.

The Company established the 1999 Stock Plan (the “1999 Plan”) effective August 31, 1999. The 1999 Plan
provides for the grant of 2,000,000 stock options and stock purchase rights, subject to annual increases, to
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employees, directors and consultants at an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair market value of the
common stock on the date of grant. Options granted under the 1999 Plan vest over a five year period and expire
ten years from the date of grant. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there were 472,492 and 349,139 shares of
common stock reserved for future grants under the 1999 Plan, respectively.

The following tables summarize the stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and
2002:

Opticns Cutstanding
Weighted Average Number of
Number of Exercise Price Shares
Shares per Share Exercisable
Balance at December 31,1999 . ....................... 1,531,662 $ 9.21 678,311
Granted . ... i e 247,500 36.19
Exercised ......... i (152,727) 1.17
Canceled . ... i e (110,483) 19.35
Balance at December 31,2000 . . ............ ... .. ..... 1,515,952 13.68 690,326
Granted . ... e e 936,425 31.53
Exercised ... i e (221,789) 7.59
Canceled . ... (101,848) 22.47
-Balance at December 31,2001 .......... ..., 2,128,740 21.73 667,769
Granted . ... ... 506,500 13.41
Bxercised ... ... e e (153,594) 5.07
Canceled ... ... i (60,427) 27.09
Balance at December 31,2002 .. ......... ... ... 2,421,219 $20.92 952,952
Stock option information as of December 31, 2002 is as follows:
Options Outstanding Options Vested and Exercisable
Weighted Avg. Weighted Avg.
Range of Options Remaining Exercise Price
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contract Life _ber Share Number Exercisable
$0.56-3%0.73 276,605 5.50 $ 0.70 276,605
10.11 - 16.00 1,058,585 8.16 16.00 327,313
17.48 - 39.69 671,065 8.50 28.90 193,052
40.00 - 50.75 414,964 8_@ 40.91 155,982
$ 0.56 -$50.75 2,421,219 7.94 $18.25 952,952

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan to provide retirement and incidental benefits for its employees. As
allowed under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides tax-deferred salary deductions for
eligible employees. Employees may contribute from 1.0% to 15.0% of their annual compensation to the Plan,
limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the Internal Revenue Service. The Plan provides a
50% match of all employee contributions up to 6 percent of the employee’s salary. Company matching
contributions to the Plan totaled $188, $200 and $276 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.

In addition, the Company has a profit sharing program, wherein a percentage of pre-tax profits, at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, is provided to all employees who have completed a stipulated employment
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peried. The Company did not make contributicns to this program for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001
and 2002.

10. Income Taxes:

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2802
Current: ‘
Federal ...... ... i e $ 5,062 $3,963 §478
Al e e e e 733 728 108
FOTBIgN ..ot e — — —
5,795 4,691 586
Deferred:
Federal ........ ...t 4,962) 2,132 8
e ot e e (1,264) 386 130
Foreign ...... e e e —_ (710) (139
(6,226) 1,808 )
Total income tax expense (benefit) ................ $ (431) $6,499 §$ 585

Income before income tax was generated principally by domestic operations in 2000 and 2001. Income
(loss) before income tax of $927 and ($1,773) was generated by domestic and foreign operations, respectively in
2002.

Deferred tax assets are comprised of the following:

December 31,
2001 2002

Amortization of intangibles . . ............ e $5,427 $1,222

Deferred 1evenue .. .....o it e e 52 21
Domestic net operating loss caryforwards .......................... — 2,875
Foreign net operating loss carryforwards ............... ... .. ... ... 710 850
Research and development credit carryforward ...................... — 326
Inventory obsolescence reserve . . ... it it e e 532 634
FIXEd @SSLIS . .. oot e e e 154 170
BT Uy o PPN 325 376
Accounts receivable . ....... ... e 122 93
Employee stock Options .. ......vvtiiritii i e 207 109
Other ..o e e 125 91
Net deferred tax @SSEt ..ottt ettt e e $7,654 $6,585
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the

applicable U.S. income tax rate of 34% to income (loss) before provision (benefit) for income taxes and
curnulative effect of a change in accounting principle as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Federal income tax provision at statutory rate ............. $ 8,611 $6,201 $ (288)
State taxes, net of federaleffect ........................ (345) 1,114 201
Change in valuation allowance .. ....................... (8,600) — —
In-process research and development write-off ............ — — 1,190
Researchtaxcredit .............. ... ... ... ... ..., (360) (466) (374)
Other .o e 263 (350) (144)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .................... $ (431) $6,499 §$ 585
Effective tax rate (benefit) ................ ... ...... (2%) 36%  (69%)

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected
future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. During 1998, the net deferred tax
asset was reduced to zero with a valuation allowance as a result of recurring losses and with the uncertainty
regarding the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income. In 2000, based on industry and internal
forecasts combined with the successful completion of its initial public offering and the reduction of debt, the
Company reduced the deferred tax valuation allowance by $8,600, for certain deferred tax assets that more likely
than not would be realized. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable
income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely
than not that the Company will realize the benefits of its deferred tax assets at December 31, 2002. However, the
deferred tax assets considered realizable at December 31, 2002, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of
future taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced.

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of YMG in 2002, the Company acquired patented technology
which gives rise to a deferred tax liability of $3,500 as of December 31, 2002. The Company also acquired U.S.
and state net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards in connection with the YMG acquisition which, as of December
31, 2002, give rise to deferred tax assets totaling $2,900. These NOL carryforwards of $7,700 expire between
2013 and 2022 for U.S. purposes, and between 2003 and 2007 for state purposes. The annual utilization of these
NOL carryforwards is limited under certain provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. The foreign NOL
carryforwards of $2,400 as of December 31, 2002 may generally be carried forward indefinitely.
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12. Geographic Reporting and Customer Concentration:

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
Revenues from third parties:
United States . ....ovttnit ittt e e $39,902 $36,749 $34,152
A . L e 34,765 29,084 17,271
BUEOPE oottt ettt e et e e e e e e e 10,695 11,546 5,945
01 1T 2,745 2,019 77
TOtal L.t e $88,107 $79,398 $57,445
Customers comprising 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for the
period indicated: ) .
A e e e 194% 334%  46.8%
B o e 219% 14.8% 6.8%
Accounts receivable of customers comprising 10% or more of the Company’s
total revenue for the period indicated:
A e e e $ 3,955 §$ 3,199 §$ 9,582
B o e e e e $3122 $1562 $ 13

Substantially all of the assets of the Company are within the United States of America.

13. Earnings (Loss) Per Share:

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share”, which requires the presentation of basic
earnings (loss) per share and diluted earnings (loss) per share. Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by
dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings (loss) gives effect to all potential dilutive common shares outstanding during the period. The
computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share does not assume conversion, exercise or contingent exercise of
securities that would have an anti-dilutive effect.
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The computations of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended December 31, 2000,
2001 and 2002 are as follows:

Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

For the year ended December 31, 2000
Basic earnings per share:

NEtINCOME o oo et ettt ee e eee e $23,576 14,773,295 $1.60

Effect of dilutive stock options .............. — 1,031,893 0.11)
Diluted earnings per share:

Netincome ............... e e $23,576 15,805,188  $ 1.49

For the year ended December 31, 2001
Basic earnings per share:

Netincome ... ..oovvv i $11,740 15,899,933  $0.74

Effect of dilutive stock options .............. — 631,528 (0.03)
Diluted earnings per share:

Netincome ........ i, $11,740 16,531,461 $071

For the year ended December 31, 2002

Basic loss per share:
Netloss ..., $(1.431) 16,215,237  $(0.09)
Effect of dilutive stock options .............. — — —

Diluted loss per share: :
Netloss ....ovviiiiiiine e iiiiiiiinn $(1,431) 16,215,237  $(0.09)

For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, the Company had outstanding options to purchase
184,750 and 420,136 shares of common stock, respectively, which were excluded from the calculation due to the
anti-dilutive nature of these instruments. For the year ended December 31, 2002, all outstanding stock options,
totaling 2,421,219, were excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share because the effect in the period
would be anti-dilutive.

14. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data (unaudited):

The following tables present certain unaudited consolidated quarterly financial information for each of the
eight quarters ended December 31, 2002. In the opinion of the Company’s management, this quarterly
information has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements and includes all
adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the information for the
period presented. The results of operations for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for the full
year or for any future period.
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The Company’s business is not seasonal; therefore year-over-year quarterly comparisons of the Company’s
results of operations may not be as meaningful as the sequential quarterly comparisons set forth below which
tend to reflect the cyclical activity of the semiconductor industry as a whole. Quarterly fluctuations in expenses
are related directly to sales activity and volume and may also reflect the timing of operating expenses incurred
throughout the year. The quarter ended September 30, 2002, includes a one-time expense of $3,500 for the write-
off of in-process research and development acquired from the acquisition of YMG.

Revenues
Gross profit
Income (loss) before income taxes ...
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding:

Basic

Diluted ................. ...

Revenues
Gross profit
Income before income taxes
Net income
Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding:
Basic
Diluted .....................

Quarters Ended
March 31, June 30, September 36, December 31,

2002 2002 2002 2002 Total

12,038 $ 13,118 § 15,199 § 17,090 §$ 57,445
5,163 5,381 6,233 7,092 23,869

694 1,019 3,07D) 512 (846)

447 656 (3,091) 557 (1,431)

003 $ 004 3 0.19) $ 603 § (0.09)

003 $ - 004 $ .19 % 003 $ (0.09)
16,145,675 16,179,502 16,226,346 16,322,014 16,215,237
16,845,390 16,722,438 16,226,346 16,550,990 16,215,237

Quarters Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2001 2001 2001 2002 Total
30,561 % 23,088 §$ 15,058 §$ 10,691 $ 79,398
16,748 11,999 6,735 4,118 39,600

9,691 6,533 1,257 758 18,239
6,101 4,117 859 663 11,740

040 § 026 § 005 § 004 § 0.74

038 § 025 $ 005 $ 0.04 $ 06.71
15,363,284 16,039,391 16,081,194 16,111,965 15,899,933
16,057,313 16,712,286 16,649,058 16,697,575 16,531,461
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(In thousands)
Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Balance at ‘
Beginning of Charged to (Recovery  Charged to Other Balance at
Description Period of) Costs and Expenses Accounts (net) Deductions End of Period
Year 2002:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts .............. $ 328 $ (78 $— $ — $ 250
Inventory valuation ....... 1,426 271 —_ — 1,697
Warranty ............... 972 1,225 — 1,077 1,120
Year 2001:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts .............. 443 (115) — —_ 328
Inventory valuation ....... 960 466 — — 1,426
Warranty ............... 1,072 915 — 1,015 972
Year 2000:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts .............. 300 143 — — 443
Deferred tax asset valuation
allowance ............. 8,600 (8,600) — — —
Inventory valuation ....... 575 385 — — 960
............... 475 1,349 — 752 1,072
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT SECTION 302(a) CERTIFICATION

I, Paul F. McLaughlin, certify that:

1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we
have: '

a, designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 24, 2003

By: s/ PAUL F. MCLAUGHLIN

Paul F. McLaughlin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




I, Steven R. Roth, certify that:
1.
2.

Date: March 24, 2003

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we
have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect
* the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

By: s/ _STEVEN R. ROTH

Steven R. Roth
Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
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